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49,646,061.84 91.64
3,125,881.84 5.77
501,808.00 0.93
53,273,751.68 98.34
898,674.25 1.66
54,172,425.93
100.00
7,844,708,999
2025
UNITED STATES 2050
1.625 6,100,000.00 | 58.02| 3,539,205.39| 52.78| 3,219,656.25| 5.94
TREASURY BOND 11 15
UNITED STATES 2050
1.375 3,900,000.00 | 50.63| 1,974,713.10| 49.40| 1,926,539.08| 3.56
TREASURY BOND 15
FREDDIE MAC POOL UMBS 2052
3 1,945,246.96 | 92.11 1,791,770.72| 87.50| 1,702,016.31| 3.14
P#SD7556
VISIO 2019-2 TRUST so5i
SER 2019-2 CL M1 V/R 3.26 | . |1,575,000.00|100.00| 1,574,944.25 | 95.48 | 1,503,759.76 | 2.78
REGD 144A P/P
FANNIE MAE POOL UMBS 2052
3 1,697,425.17 | 88.28| 1,498,521.27| 87.98| 1,493,331.10( 2.76
P#FS0984
FREDDIE MAC REMICS 2055
5.5052 1,317,730.02 [ 100.02 | 1,317,934.69| 99.58| 1,312,144.16| 2.42
SER 5524 CL FB V/R 25
FANNIE MAE REMICS SER 2049
2.5 1,500,000.00 [ 97.15( 1,457,210.40| 80.02| 1,200,313.80( 2.22
2019-74 CL KT 12 25
FANNIE MAE POOL UMBS 2052
3.5 1,328,305.74 | 94.01 1,248,800.45| 90.24| 1,198,631.53( 2.21
PH#MA4600
FANNIE MAE POOL UMBS 2030
5.05 1,146,000.00 | 100.00 | 1,146,000.00 | 101.84| 1,167,076.26| 2.15
P#BS7451
FANNIE MAE POOL UMBS 2029
10 5.39 1,115,000.00 | 101.77 | 1,134,776.18| 102.45| 1,142,336.56 | 2.11
P#BZ1077
FANNIE MAE REMICS SER 2051
11 2.5 1,813,192.87 | 59.88( 1,085,796.25| 62.01| 1,124,395.53( 2.08
2021-28 CL HZ 25
FANNIE MAE POOL UMBS 2053
12 4.98 1,171,010.48 | 101.65 | 1,190,287.44| 95.41| 1,117,313.76| 2.06
P#BS8438
FREDDIE MAC POOL UMBS 2052
13 3 1,262,841.73| 92.72| 1,170,848.62| 87.83| 1,109,176.81| 2.05
P#SD1460
FANNIE MAE POOL UMBS 2054
14 5.5 1,076,295.59 [ 100.24 | 1,078,931.66 | 101.17| 1,088,861.44[ 2.01
P#FS9671 11
FANNIE MAE REMICS SER 2055
15 5.7052 1,054,484.35 [ 100.09 | 1,055,472.41] 100.44| 1,059,115.75| 1.9
2025-6 CL GF V/R 25
WASHINGTON MUTUAL
MORTGAGE PASS-THROUGH 2035
16 5.5 1,109,177.99 | 89.06| 987,855.51| 89.76| 995,629.33| 1.84
CERTIFICATES WMAL SER 25
2005-3 CL 1CB1 REGD
FANNIE MAE REMICS SER 2050
17 2 1,000,000.00 [ 74.31| 743,089.36| 78.92| 789,184.00| 1.46
2020-56 CL AQ 25
TOWD POINT MORTGAGE
TRUST 2022-1 SER 2062
18 3.75 824,594.55| 95.11| 784,279.80| 95.04| 783,702.25| 1.45
2022-1 CL Al V/R REGD 25
1447 P/P
FANNIE MAE POOL UMBS 2054
19 5.5 753,387.04 | 101.68 |  766,042.63|101.17|  762,182.86| 1.41
PHCB8I86

36/211



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
oopoodooodooodnoodn

ELLINGTON FINANCIAL
MORTGAGE TRUST 2022-4 2067

20 5.9 732,865.47| 97.43| 714,063.74[100.28|  734,936.47| 1.36
SER 2022-4 CL A3 V/R 25
REGD 144A P/P
FREDDIE MAC POOL UMBS 2052

21 4 766,382.62| 96.61| 740,383.09| 93.18| 714,115.92| 1.32
PHRATT73
COLT 2023-2 WORTGAGE
LOAN TRUST SER 2023-2 2068

22 6.596 676,804.08 | 100.00|  676,795.04 [ 100.74|  681,781.97| 1.26
CL Al S/UP REGD 144A 25
P/P
OBX 2023-NQML TRUST 2062

23 | SER 2023-NQM1 CL Al 6.2 | . 671,980.81|100.00| 671,972.79| 99.88| 671,164.62| 1.24
V/R REGD 144A P/P
FREDDIE MAC POOL UMBS 2053

24 5 647,123.92| 97.31| 629,687.93| 99.15| 641,624.71| 1.18
P#SD7564
VERUS SECURITIZATION
TRUST 2023-INV1 SER 2068

25 5.999 637,425.94| 100.00|  637,418.85| 99.97| 637,205.14| 1.18
2023-1NV1 CL AL V/R 25
REGD 144A P/P
VERUS SECURITIZATION
TRUST 2024-6 SER 2069

26 5.799 608,666.32 | 100.00|  608,661.40 [ 100.68|  612,778.65| 1.13
2024-6 CL ALl V/R REGD 25
144A P/P
FREDDIE MAC REMICS 2051

27 3 979,039.81| 65.70| 643,258.78| 58.74| 575,088.67| 1.06
SER 5163 CL Z 11 25
OBX 2024-NQM13 TRUST 2064

28 |SER 2024-NQM13 CL A2 5.37 5 556,445.96 | 100.00|  556,437.40| 99.51| 553,696.50| 1.02
V/R REGD 144A P/P
FANNIE MAE POOL UMBS 2046

29 3.5 593,825.45| 101.98|  605,575.50 | 92.11| 546,962.85| 1.01
P#AS6503
INVITATION HOMES
2024-SFR1 TRUST SER 2041

30 4.25 558,000.00 | 96.06| 536,025.45| 96.06| 535,999.57| 0.99
2024-SFR1 CL C REGD 17
144A P/P
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2024 2025

2018 28 8,686,382.00 1,257,874,977 9.87 1,429
2019 28 2,762,565.00 400,047,038 9.87 1,429
2020 29 2,527,093.00 365,948,337 10.40 1,506
2021 28 3,912,075.00 566,507,581 10.06 1,457
2022 28 2,334,065.00 337,995,953 9.64 1,396
2023 28 1,183,859.00 171,434,622 8.27 1,198
2024 29 937,412.00 135,746,632 8.18 1,185
2025 28 792,865.00 114,814,781 8.40 1,216
2024 863,114.92 124,987,672 8.33 1,206
795,002.00 115,124,240 8.45 1,224

801,693.49 116,093,234 8.51 1,232

10 781,088.74 113,109,460 8.29 1,200

11 789,029.98 114,259,431 8.37 1,212

12 775,628.59 112,318,776 8.23 1,192

2025 775,759.62 112,337,751 8.22 1,190
792,865.00 114,814,781 8.40 1,216

790,156.94 114,422,626 8.37 1,212

789,387.20 114,311,160 8.36 1,211

781,639.71 113,189,246 8.27 1,198

791,996.56 114,689,022 8.38 1,214
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2018 28 30,965,492.00 4,484,112,897 9.93 1,438
2019 28 23,351,368.00 3,381,511,600 10.05 1,455
2020 29 39,075,715.00 5,658,554,289 10.73 1,554
2021 28 19,700,876.00 2,852,883,854 10.50 1,521
2022 28 11,429,343.00 1,655,083,160 10.19 1,476
2023 28 8,746,633.00 1,266,599,925 8.87 1,284
2024 29 15,872,910.00 2,298,556,097 8.92 1,292
2025 28 15,768,245.00 2,283,399,558 9.30 1,347
2024 17,086,101.36 2,474,238,338 9.12 1,321
17,436,170.00 2,524,931,778 9.28 1,344

17,503,695.35 2,534,710,124 9.31 1,348

10 17,069,277.45 2,471,802,068 9.09 1,316

11 17,185,678.12 2,488,658,049 9.20 1,332

12 15,412,381.75 2,231,867,001 9.07 1,313

2025 15,446,152.08 2,236,757,283 9.09 1,316
15,768,245.00 2,283,399,558 9.30 1,347

15,641,575.54 2,265,056,554 9.23 1,337

15,441,667.93 2,236,107,933 9.24 1,338

14,382,447.19 2,082,722,178 9.17 1,328

14,582,074.97 2,111,630,276 9.31 1,348
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2018 28 1,319,826,597 9,747
2019 28 938,086,516 9,560
2020 29 740,002,439 9,878
2021 28 468,996,501 9,499
2022 28 533,542,314 9,111
2023 28 406,964,652 7,594
2024 29 310,300,933 7,083
2025 28 165,179,653 6,803
2024 170,127,101 7,007
171,335,005 7,057

171,912,687 7,081

10 166,334,644 6,851

11 167,113,852 6,883

12 163,245,738 6,724

2025 162,336,889 6,686
165,179,653 6,803

163,774,856 6,745

162,815,438 6,706

160,423,360 6,607

157,250,880 6,664
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2018 28 4,649,612,061 9,785
2019 28 4,111,604,311 9,658
2020 29 4,110,797,927 10,045
2021 28 3,626,665,845 9,746
2022 28 3,212,368,614 9,437
2023 28 5,714,622,038 7,965
2024 29 5,891,474,578 7,550
2025 28 5,593,196,524 7,455
2024 5,668,816,448 7,545
5,726,433,232 7,624

5,733,316,223 7,633

10 5,564,921,915 7,409

11 5,609,220,652 7,468

12 5,499,193,354 7,322

2025 5,487,193,227 7,305
5,593,196,524 7,455

5,533,378,080 7,377

5,519,212,385 7,358

5,382,265,492 7,272

5,446,977,421 7,359
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0.12 17 0.06 9
0.24 35 0.12 17
0.24 35 0.12 17
0.24 35 0.12 17
0.24 35 0.12 17
0.24 35 0.12 17
0.24 35 0.12 17
0.24 35 0.12 17
2025 0.02 3 0.06 9
0.02 3 0 0
0.02 3 0 0
0.02 3 0 0
1.88 272 0.96 139
60 40

120 80

120 80

120 80

120 80

120 80

120 80

120 80

2025 10 40
10 0

10 0

10 0

940 640
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-0.10 -0.10 -1.93 -1.75
2.43 2.42 -0.69 -0.48
7.80 7.96 4.58 4.84
-0.96 -1.03 -2.62 -2.18
-1.79 -1.81 -2.82 -2.35
-11.72 -11.78 -15.33 -14.75
1.81 1.92 -5.15 -4.21
5.62 5.61 -2.26 -0.20
100x
10.00
10,000
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1,126,302 246,498 879,804
(1,126,302) (246,498) (879,804)
61,776 661,560 280,020
(61,776) (661,560) (280,020)
61,310 98,361 242,969
(61,310) (98,361) (242,969)
211,506 65,521 388,954
(211,506) (65,521) (388,954)
30,822 177,738 242,038
(30,822) (177,738) (242,038)
1,269 100,173 143,134
(1,269) (100,173) (143,134)

720 29,295 114,559
(720) (29,295) (114,559)
555 20,747 94,367
(555) (20,747) (94,367)
3,340,569 222,631 3,117,938
(3,340,569) (222,631) (3,117,938)
134,461 929,636 2,322,763
(134,461) (929,636) (2,322,763)
2,018,963 698,832 3,642,894
(2,018,963) (698,832) (3.642,894)
292,891 2,059,636 1,876,149
(292,891) (2,059, 636) (1,876,149)
65,867 820,866 1,121,150
(65,867) (820,866) (1,121,150)
89,563 225,161 985,552
(89,563) (225,161) (985,552)
921,283 127,118 1,779,717
(921,283) (127,118) (1,779,717)
210,219 295,297 1,694,639
(210,219) (295,297) (1,694,639)
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139,992 4,587 135,405
(139,992) (4,587) (135,405)
13,275 50,556 98,124
(13,275) (50,556) (98,124)
11,138 34,347 74,915
(11,138) (34,347) (74,915)
1,111 26,655 49,371
(1,111) (26,655) (49,371)
17,034 7,844 58,561
(17,034) (7,844) (58,561)
66 5,038 53,589
(66) (5,038) (53,589)
3,331 13,112 43,808
(3.,331) (13,112) (43,808)

8 19,536 24,280

®) (19,536) (24,280)
588,854 113,665 475,189
(588,854) (113,665) (475,189)
1,246 50,716 425,719
(1,246) (50,716) (425,719)
8,077 24,553 409,243
(8,077) (24,553) (409,243)
2,108 39,246 372,105
(2,108) (39,246) (372,105)
2,526 34,245 340,386
(2,526) (34,245) (340, 386)
382,562 5,513 717,435
(382,562) (5,513) (717,435)
64,850 1,936 780,349
(64,850) (1,936) (780, 349)
294 30,432 750,211
(294) (30,432) (750,211)
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2025

28

57,603,217

165,179,653
24,280

5,593,196,524
750,211

792,865
94,367

15,768,245
1,694,639

144.81
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52,549,848 7,609,743
2,895,911 419,357
393 57
264,397 38,287
6,531 946
55,717,080 8,068,390
500,000 72,405
4,106 595
256,440 37,135
59,995 8,688
44,418 6,432
25,365 3,673
22,890 3,315
12,463 1,805
1,709 247
16,459 2,383
943,845 136,678
54,773,235 7,931,712
75,172,363 10,885,710
(20,399,128) (2,953,998)
54,773,235 7,931,712
6,803
7,455
8.40 1,216
9.30 1,347
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2025 28

3,154,282 456,772
3,154,282 456,772
375,548 54,383
331,366 47,985
94,702 13,714
27,952 4,048
15,001 2,172
11,046 1,600
10,001 1,448
73,311 10,616
938,927 135,966
2,215,355 320,806
(599,157) (86,764)
(1,849,755) (267,863)
(2,448,912) (354,627)
1,322,553 191,519
(488,928) (70,802)
833,625 120,717
(1,615,287) (233,910)
600,068 86,896

144.81
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2025 28

2,215,355 320,806
(2,448,912) (354,627)
833,625 120,717
600,068 86,896
(20,068) (2,906)
(421,307) (61,009)
(24,434) (3,538)
(219,606) (31,801)
(685,415) (99,255)
8 350 51
294 14,100 2,042
555 4,584 664
210,219 1,912,294 276,919
19,536 (921,446) (133,435)
30,432 (1,518,547) (219,901)
20,747 (174,024) (25,200)
295,297 (2,705,381) (391,766)
(3,388,070) (490, 626)
(3,473,417) (502,986)
58,246,652 8,434,698
54,773,235 7,931,712

144.81
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2025 28

600,068 86,896
(36,558,939) (5,294,100)
41,786,333 6,051,079

(118,541) (17,166)
599,157 86,764
(1,322,553) (191,519)
488,935 70,803
23,971 3,471
(6,531) (946)
(212) (31)
10,458 1,514
(12,241) 1,773)
(3,287) (476)
(20,827) (3,016)
2,281 330
(7,874) (1,140)
6,796 984
5,466,994 791,675
1,931,676 279,726
(5,340,560) (773,366)
(685,415) (99,255)
(4,094,299) (592,895)
1,372,695 198,780
1,523,216 220,577
2,895,911 419,357
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2025 28
2025 2025
28 28 2025 28 2025 28
7,083 7,550 8.18 1,185 8.92 1,292
() 137 301 0.34 49 0.37 54
(297) (316) 0.12 17 0.13 19
(160) 15) 0.46 67 0.50 72
(120) (80) (0.24) (35) (0.12) an
6,803 7,455 8.40 1,216 9.30 1,347
.27 0.22) 5.71 5.64
165,180 5,593,197 793 114,834 15,768 2,283,364
3.73 1.67 1.62 1.61
1.97 4.03 4.11 4.10

@

144.81
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250,000

100,000

200,000

471,644

360,979

250,000

68,985

60,000

100,000

774,051

1,124,659

1,739,411

100,000

110,000

80,000

100,000

100,000

125,000

100,000

1,000,000

70,000

95.9

95.9
57.6
AASET 2025-1 Class A
5.94% due 02/16/50(1)
Acrec 2025 F1 3 LLC Class A
0.00% due 08/18/42(1).(2)
Aligned Data Centers Issuer LLC Class B
2.48% due 08/15/46(1)
Alternative Loan Trust 2005-4 Class 1A2
5.50% due 04/25/35

Alternative Loan Trust 2007-0A8 Class 1Al

4.79% due 06/25/47(2)

American Credit Acceptance Receivables Trust

2024-4 Class C
4.91% due 08/12/31(1)

Arbor Realty Commercial Real Estate Notes

2022-FL1 Ltd. Class A

5.79% due 01/15/37(1),(2)

AREIT 2024-CRE9 Ltd. Class A

6.00% due 05/17/41(1),(>

AREIT 2025-CRE10 Ltd. Class A

5.70% due 12/17/29(1).(2

BANK 2017-BNK4 Class XA

1.33% due 05/15/50(3)

BANK 2017-BNK6 Class XA

0.79% due 07/15/60(3)

BANK 2018-BNK10 Class XA

0.69% due 02/15/61(3)

BANK 2021-BNK35 Class A5

2.29% due 06/15/64

BANK 2021-BNK38 Class A5

2.52% due 12/15/64

BANK5 2024-5YR10 Class B

6.14% due 10/15/57(3)

BBCMS 2018-TALL Mortgage Trust Class F
7.74% due 03/15/37(1),(2)

BBCMS Mortgage Trust 2020-C7 Class AS
2.44% due 04/15/53

BBCMS Mortgage Trust 2020-C8 Class A5
2.04% due 10/15/53

BBCMS Mortgage Trust 2021-C12 Class A5
2.69% due 11/15/54

BBCMS Mortgage Trust 2022-C18 Class XD
2.15% due 12/15/55(1).(3)

BBCMS Mortgage Trust 2024-5C29 Class A3
5.21% due 09/15/57
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254,535

99,937

191,323

322,670

309,539

251,117

68,985

60,300

99,688

18,099

16,674

29,727

85,398

93,390

82,089

72,998

87,604

107,872

87,250

145,131

71,074
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(@)
BDS 2024-FL13 LLC Class A
100,000 5.89% due 09/19/39(1).(2 0.2 100,282
Bear Stearns ARM Trust 2007-1 Class 2Al1
203,575 5.88% due 02/25/47(3) 0.3 176,383
Bear Stearns Asset Backed Securities | Trust
2007-HE6 Class 1Al
29,743 5.68% due 08/25/37(2) 0.1 29,344
Benchmark 2019-B13 Mortgage Trust Class A3
100,000 2.70% due 08/15/57 0.2 91,769
Benchmark 2020-B19 Mortgage Trust Class A4
125,000 1.55% due 09/15/53 0.2 109,101
Benchmark 2020-B19 Mortgage Trust Class XA
971,962 1.76% due 09/15/53(3) 0.1 49,321
Benchmark 2020-1G3 Mortgage Trust Class XA
2,103,106 0.73% due 09/15/48(1),(3) 0.0 27,153
Benchmark 2021-B30 Mortgage Trust Class A5
125,000 2.58% due 11/15/54 0.2 107,978
Benchmark 2024-V9 Mortgage Trust Class A3
100,000 5.60% due 08/15/57 0.2 103,128
BMO 2024-5C3 Mortgage Trust Class AS
100,000 6.29% due 02/15/57(3) 0.2 103,896
BMO 2024-5C7 Mortgage Trust Class AS
100,000 5.89% due 11/15/57(3) 0.2 102,948
Bridge Street CLO IV Ltd. Class A
500,000 5.89% due 04/20/37(1).(2) 0.9 501,656
BSPRT 2022-FL8 Issuer Ltd. Class A
44,918 5.84% due 02/15/37(D).(2) 0.1 44,806
BX Commercial Mortgage Trust 2021-VOLT Class
E
100,000 6.43% due 09/15/36(1).(2) 0.2 99,827
BX Commercial Mortgage Trust 2021-XL2 Class A
40,621 5.11% due 10/15/38(1).(D 0.1 40,544
BX Commercial Mortgage Trust 2022-LP2 Class A
61,424 5.32% due 02/15/39(1).(2) 0.1 61,309
BX Commercial Mortgage Trust 2024-AIRC Class
A
100,000 6.00% due 08/15/39(1).(2) 0.2 100,500
BX Trust 2019-0C11 Class E
100,000 3.94% due 12/09/41(1).(3) 0.2 91,583
BX Trust 2019-0C11 Class XB
5,138,000 0.18% due 12/09/41(D).(3) 0.1 51,001
BX Trust 2022-PSB Class A
62,019 6.76% due 08/15/39(1),(2) 0.1 62,116
Carrington Mortgage Loan Trust Series 2006-
NC4 Class A3
190,596 4.59% due 10/25/36(2) 0.3 186,769
CarVal CLO IX-C Ltd. Class A
500,000 5.97% due 04/20/37(1).(2) 0.9 503,500
CD 2017-CD4 Mortgage Trust Class XA
1,094,164 1.22% due 05/10/50(3) 0.0 21,898
CHL Mortgage Pass-Through Trust 2006-0A5
Class 2Al1
485,459 4.83% due 04/25/46(2) 0.8 415,308
Citigroup Commercial Mortgage Trust 2015-GC35
Class XA
1,421,473 0.71% due 11/10/48(3) 0.0 2,857
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Q)
Citigroup Commercial Mortgage Trust 2017-P7
Class XA
306,240 1.08% due 04/14/50(3) 0.0 5,082
Citigroup Commercial Mortgage Trust 2020-555
Class E
100,000 3.50% due 12/10/41(1).(3) 0.2 82,498
Citigroup Commercial Mortgage Trust 2020-GC46
Class AS
117,000 2.92% due 02/15/53(3) 0.2 101,909
Cologix Data Centers US Issuer LLC Class A2
250,000 3.30% due 12/26/51(1) 0.4 237,683
COLT 2023-1 Mortgage Loan Trust Class Al
327,336 6.05% due 04/25/68(1).(%) 0.6 328,906
COLT 2023-2 Mortgage Loan Trust Class Al
743,141 6.60% due 07/25/68(1).(%) 1.4 750,927
COMM 2015-LC21 Mortgage Trust Class XA
1,521,257 0.57% due 07/10/48(3) 0.0 71
CSAIL 2019-C18 Commercial Mortgage Trust
Class XA
1,094,853 0.99% due 12/15/52(3) 0.1 39,955
CSMC 2020-NET Class A
41,144 2.26% due 08/15/37(D 0.1 40,261
CSMC 2021-B33 Class Al
95,901 3.05% due 10/10/43(1) 0.2 90,275
Ellington Financial Mortgage Trust 2022-4
Class A3
774,035 5.90% due 09/25/67(1).(4) 1.4 777,047
Exeter Automobile Receivables Trust 2021-2
Class D
52,815 1.08% due 11/16/26 0.1 52,452
FIVE 2023-V1 Mortgage Trust Class D
100,000 6.30% due 02/10/56(1).(3) 0.2 96,459
FNMA Interest Strip Class C57
1,098,481 3.00% due 03/25/52 0.3 184,925
FNMA Interest Strip Class C8
1,221,106 2.50% due 06/25/52 0.4 193,332
FNMA REMICS Class AE
495,156 4.00% due 02/25/48 0.8 462,575
FNMA REMICS Class AQ
1,000,000 2.00% due 08/25/50 1.4 788,583
FNMA REMICS Class KT
1,500,000 2.50% due 12/25/49 2.2 1,194,172
FNMA-Aces Class AlX
237,471 2.46% due 05/25/30(3) 0.4 220,989
FNMA-Aces Class 10
2,492,535 1.29% due 07/25/29(3) 0.2 93,908
FNMA-Aces Class X1
4,521,319 1.13% due 06/25/31(®) 0.3 175,265
FNMA-Aces Class X2
4,941,982 1.10% due 10/25/29(3) 0.3 188,142
1,603,361 1.24% due 03/25/31(3) 0.1 76,692
Freddie Mac REMICS 4223 Class SB
420,450 0.07% due 07/15/43(2) 0.5 280,698
Freddie Mac REMICS Class SD
1,923,394 0.00% due 08/25/51(2) 0.0 4,526
Q)
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Freddie Mac REMICS Class Z

969,310 3.00% due 11/25/51 1.1 592,245
Freddie Mac REMICS Class ZP

761,178 3.00% due 11/25/51 0.9 478,007
GAIA Aviation Ltd. Class A

242,375 3.97% due 12/15/44(1).(4) 0.4 230,329

GoodLeap Home Improvement Solutions Trust
2024-1 Class A

130,091 5.35% due 10/20/46(1) 0.2 131,814
Government National Mortgage Association
Class CI
1,218,732 3.00% due 09/20/50 0.4 194,582
1,152,610 3.00% due 10/20/51 0.3 185,587
Government National Mortgage Association
Class El
893,835 3.00% due 07/20/50 0.3 140,870
Government National Mortgage Association
Class IL
1,053,334 3.00% due 06/20/51 0.3 170,403
Government National Mortgage Association
Class 10
1,969,043 0.58% due 05/16/61(3) 0.2 87,208
1,602,776 0.60% due 04/16/64(3) 0.1 75,817
2,074,935 0.61% due 05/16/65(3) 0.2 104,532
2,052,600 0.72% due 10/16/63(3) 0.2 125,334
1,622,344 0.82% due 02/16/63(3) 0.2 100,349
1,777,799 0.88% due 08/16/64() 0.2 130,490
1,561,682 0.97% due 05/16/63(3) 0.2 108,914
1,304,723 1.15% due 08/16/62(3) 0.2 104,275
1,185,499 2.50% due 11/20/51 0.3 172,313
Government National Mortgage Association
Class IW
1,264,143 2.50% due 09/20/50 0.3 172,662
Government National Mortgage Association
Class IX
2,173,358 1.20% due 08/16/63(3) 0.3 191,912
Government National Mortgage Association
Class Kl
582,224 3.00% due 02/20/51 0.2 96,371
Government National Mortgage Association
Class MI
1,343,733 2.50% due 11/20/50 0.4 201,857
2,371,508 2.50% due 05/20/51 0.5 276,790
Government National Mortgage Association
Class TI
754,358 3.00% due 09/20/51 0.2 127,617
Great Wolf Trust 2024-WOLF Class C
100,000 6.70% due 03/15/39(1).(2 0.2 100,250
Greystone CRE Notes 2021-FL3 Ltd. Class A
65,426 5.45% due 07/15/39(1).(2) 0.1 65,283
GS Mortgage Securities Trust 2017-GS6 Class
XA
824,644 1.00% due 05/10/50(3) 0.0 13,742
GS Mortgage Securities Trust 2017-GS7 Class
XA
924,746 1.07% due 08/10/50(3) 0.0 17,965

GS Mortgage Securities Trust 2020-GC45 Class
XA
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1,144,429

234,375

244,800

558,000

79,689

100,000

100,000

741,429

834,158

100,000

86,960

100,000

1,320,074

500,000

500,000

818,459

62,561

98,874

100,000

100,000

100,000

946,719

0.62% due 02/13/53(3)

Hardee®s Funding LLC Class A23

5.71% due 06/20/48(1)

Horizon Aircraft Finance IV Ltd. Class A
5.38% due 09/15/49(1)

Invitation Homes 2024-SFR1 Trust Class C
4.25% due 09/17/41(1)

J.P. Morgan Chase Commercial Mortgage
Securities Trust 2019-MFP Class D

6.02% due 07/15/36(1).(2)

JP Morgan Chase Commercial Mortgage
Securities Trust 2016-JP3 Class B

3.40% due 08/15/49(3)

JP Morgan Chase Commercial Mortgage
Securities Trust 2020-LOOP Class E

3.86% due 12/05/38(1).(3)

JPMBB Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust
2015-C32 Class XA

1.14% due 11/15/48(3)

JPMDB Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust
2020-COR7 Class XA

1.63% due 05/13/53(3)

LFT CRE 2021-FL1 Ltd. Class B

6.18% due 06/15/39(1).(2)

LoanCore 2022-CRE7 Issuer Ltd. Class A
5.89% due 01/17/37(1).(2)

LoanCore 2025 2025-CRE8 Issuer LLC Class A
5.76% due 08/17/42(1).(2)

Long Beach Mortgage Loan Trust 2006-9 Class
2A2

4.65% due 10/25/36(2)

Magnetite XL Ltd. Class Al

5.75% due 07/15/37(1).(2)

Marble Point CLO XXIl Ltd. Class A

5.76% due 07/25/34(1),(2)

Merrill Lynch Alternative Note Asset Trust
Series 2007-0AR5 Class 1Al

3.81% due 10/25/47(3)

MF1 2021-FL7 Ltd. Class A

5.51% due 10/16/36(1),(2)

MF1 2022-FL9 LLC Class A

6.46% due 06/19/37(1).(2)

MF1 2024-FL15 Class A

6.00% due 08/18/41(1).(2)

MF1 2025-FL17 LLC Class A

0.00% due 02/18/40(1).(2)

Morgan Stanley Capital 1 2017-HR2 Class C
4.32% due 12/15/50(3)

Morgan Stanley Capital 1 Trust 2016-UB11
Class XA

1.43% due 08/15/49(3)
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0.0 27,372

0.4 233,184

0.4 243,512

1.0 536,534

0.1 79,108

0.2 92,051

0.0 15,764

0.0 1,065

0.1 47,076

0.2 99,975

0.2 86,960

0.2 99,844

0.8 415,207

0.9 502,774

0.9 500,484

0.4 224,856

0.1 62,457

0.2 98,967

0.2 100,438

0.2 99,751

0.2 95,310

0.0 13,908

985,654

Morgan Stanley Capital 1 Trust 2016-UBS12
Class XA

0.63% due 12/15/49(3)

Morgan Stanley Capital | Trust 2017-H1 Class
XA
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783,398 1.29% due 06/15/50(3) 0.0 14,453
Morgan Stanley Capital 1 Trust 2019-L3 Class
XA
1,574,745 0.61% due 11/15/52(3) 0.1 38,285
Morgan Stanley Capital 1 Trust 2024-NSTB
Class A
98,849 3.90% due 09/24/57(1),(3) 0.2 94,304
Natixis Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust
2020-2PAC Class D
113,000 3.75% due 12/15/38(1) 0.2 95,148
Navient Private Education Refi Loan Trust
2022-A Class A

64,868 2.23% due 07/15/70(1) 0.1 58,910
OBX 2023-NQM1 Trust Class Al

705,723  6.12% due 11/25/62(1),(3) 1.3 707,602
0BX 2024-NQM13 Trust Class A2

643,837 5.37% due 06/25/64(1),(%) 1.2 641,681
Octagon 75 Ltd. Class Al

500,000 0.00% due 01/22/38(1).(2) 0.9 499,914
PRET 2021-RN2 LLC Class Al

201,751 4.74% due 07/25/51(1),(%) 0.4 200,897
RALI Series 2006-QS13 Trust Class 1A3

301,641 6.00% due 09/25/36 0.4 239,361
RALI Series 2007-QH5 Trust Class All

921,946 4.89% due 06/25/37(2) 0.7 407,982
RASC Series 2007-EMX1 Trust Class Al3

127,382 4.83% due 01/25/37(2) 0.2 127,988
Renaissance Home Equity Loan Trust 2006-4
Class AF2

635,400 5.29% due 01/25/37(4) 0.3 191,819
Slam Ltd. Class A

150,891 5.34% due 09/15/49(1) 0.3 150,322
SoFi Professional Loan Program 2017-E LLC
Class B

247,871 3.49% due 11/26/40(1) 0.4 244,518
SoFi Professional Loan Program 2017-E LLC
Class C

250,000 4.16% due 11/26/40(1) 0.4 238,904
Soho Trust 2021-SOHO Class B

77,000 2.70% due 08/10/38(1).(3) 0.1 57,381
Spruce Hill Mortgage Loan Trust 2020-SH1
Class M1

341,682 3.22% due 01/28/50(1).(3) 0.6 335,579
STWD 2019-FL1 Ltd. Class AS

2,049 5.83% due 07/15/38(1).(2) 0.0 2,047

Subway Funding LLC Class A23

99,750 5.91% due 07/30/54(1) 0.2 100,698
Switch ABS Issuer LLC Class B

250,000 6.20% due 06/25/54(1) 0.5 250,853
Taco Bell Funding LLC Class A23

196,500 2.54% due 08/25/51(1) 0.3 167,529

(@)

Towd Point Mortgage Trust 2022-1 Class Al

868,034 3.75% due 07/25/62(1).(3) 1.5 826,784
TRTX 2021-FL4 Issuer Ltd. Class A

45,884 5.63% due 03/15/38(1).(2) 0.1 45,711
UBS Commercial Mortgage Trust 2017-C1 Class
XA

759,783 1.48% due 06/15/50(3) 0.0 18,309

71/211



EDINETOOOO
Do000000000000000000(E27078)
o o o o o
UBS Commercial Mortgage Trust 2017-C3 Class

XA
1,897,226 1.10% due 08/15/50(3) 0.1 34,617
Verus Securitization Trust 2021-R1 Class M1
500,000 2.34% due 10/25/63(1) 0.8 446,455
Verus Securitization Trust 2023-INV1 Class Al
696,438 6.00% due 02/25/68(1).(4) 1.3 698,236
Verus Securitization Trust 2024-6 Class Al
670,258 5.80% due 07/25/69(1).(4) 1.2 675,219
Visio 2019-2 Trust Class M1
1,575,000 3.26% due 11/25/54(1).(3) 2.7 1,460,373

Washington Mutual Mortgage Pass-Through
Certificates WMALT Series 2005-3 Trust Class
1CB1
1,136,103 5.50% due 05/25/35 1.8 1,000,762
Washington Mutual Mortgage Pass-Through
Certificates WMALT Series 2007-2 Trust Class
1A1
358,928 7.00% due 04/25/37 0.3 181,178
Washington Mutural Asset-Backed Certificates
WMABS Series 2006-HE5 Trust Class 2A3
1,105,282 4.22% due 10/25/36(2) 0.7 385,665
Wells Fargo Commercial Mortgage Trust 2016-
C33 Class XA
629,815 1.54% due 03/15/59(3) 0.0 5,987
Wells Fargo Commercial Mortgage Trust 2017-
C38 Class XA
790,879 0.91% due 07/15/50(3) 0.0 12,524
Wells Fargo Commercial Mortgage Trust 2019-
C54 Class XA
1,324,207 0.83% due 12/15/52(3) 0.1 44,144
Wells Fargo Commercial Mortgage Trust 2019-
JWDR Class C
100,000 3.04% due 09/15/31(1).(3) 0.2 96,891
Wells Fargo Mortgage Backed Securities 2006-
AR14 Trust Class 2A1

234,619 7.39% due 10/25/36(3) 0.4 225,673
Zayo Issuer LLC Class B
250,000 6.09% due 03/20/55(1) 0.5 252,640
31,567,065
11.8
U.S. Treasury Bond
550,000 4.25% due 08/15/54 1.0 525,078
U.S. Treasury Bonds
2,950,000 1.38% due 08/15/50 2.8 1,519,250
8,000,000 1.63% due 11/15/50 8.0 4,400,000
6,444,328
(@D)
26.5
Fannie Mae Pool
307,393 3.00% due 11/01/46 0.5 273,210
603,476 3.50% due 01/01/46 1.0 558,752
FNMA Pool
1,751,446 3.00% due 04/01/52 2.8 1,547,837
250,964 3.50% due 02/01/51 0.4 228,953
1,367,415 3.50% due 05/01/52 2.3 1,239,162
1,174,856 4.98% due 06/01/53 2.1 1,151,229
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1,146,000 5.05% due 01/01/30 2.1 1,164,105
1,115,000 5.39% due 06/01/29 2.1 1,138,251

769,543 5.50% due 08/01/54 1.4 779,723
1,095,828 5.50% due 11/01/54 2.0 1,110,537

Freddie Mac Gold Pool
393,688 3.50% due 08/01/46 0.7 362,899
Freddie Mac Pool

393,539 3.00% due 07/01/47 0.7 349,747
1,310,064 3.00% due 05/01/52 2.1 1,155,457
2,009,064 3.00% due 08/01/52 3.2 1,771,972
775,380 4.00% due 08/01/52 1.3 727,489
670,597 5.00% due 06/01/53 1.2 668,550
GNMA 11 Pool
364,089 2.50% due 08/20/51 0.6 310,582
14,538,455
52,549,848
57,603,217 52,549,848
57,603,217 95.9 52,549,848
4.1 2,223,387
100.0 54,773,235
(7,931,712,160 )
(1)144A 1933 144A
(2)2025 28 Floating Rate
(3)2025 28 Variable Rate
(4)2025 28
144 81
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CITI PB 156,385,955 2025 28 (1,047,655) (6,962) (6,962)

CITI PB 5,345,735 2025 28 (35,824) (250) (250)

CITI PB 2,047,344 2025 28 (13,759) (135) (135)
(7,347) (7,347)

Brown

Brothers

Harriman & 10,000 2025 28 (67) ()] (€))

Co.

CITI PB 5,277,040,833 2025 28 (35,351,773) (234,916) (234,916)

Citi PB 180,636,139 2025 28 (1,210,506) (8,436) (8,436)

Citi PB 87,068,275 2025 28 (585,149) (5,740) (5,740)

(249,003) _ (249,093)
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946

GAAP

FASB

12
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2025 28
2025 28
52,549,848 52,549,848
52,549,848 52,549,848
2025 28
(256,440) (256,440)
(256, 440) (256,440)
2025 28
FASB ASC 740

50
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7,542
32
29 57,305
41
29 1,790,698
)
)
) )
2,073,234 39,363,096 937,412 15,872,910 58,246,652
350 14,100 4,584 1,912,294 1,931,328
(921,446) (1,518,547) (174,024)  (2,705,381)  (5,319,398)
(20,068)  (421,307) (24,434) (219,606) (685,415)
(35,951)  (321,336) 49,327 908,028 600,068
1,096,119 37,116,006 792,865 15,768,245 54,773,235
43,808 780,349 114,559 1,779,717 2,718,433
8 294 555 210,219 211,076
(19,536) (30,432) (20,747) (295,297) (366,012)
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24,280 750,211 94,367 1,694,639 2,563,497
45.15 49.47 8.40 9.30
10,000
10.00
10
2025 28
2025 28 4,106
2017 30
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15
15
ASC 815-10-50
a b
c
ASC 815
1SDA 1SDA
1SDA
2025 28 MNA
MNA
@

Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. 1 1
Citi PB 256,439 256,439
256,440 256,440

@
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2025 28

(256, 440)

2025 28

(1,855,545) (488,935)
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0.68 0.03 0.25
0.22
0.40 0.35
2025 28 375,548 2025 28
25,365
0.07 2.5
0.06 2.5
0.05
60,000
0.05 50,000
2025 28 94,702
2025 28 22,890
0.015
15,000 2025 28
15,001 2025 28
0.02
2025 28 11,046 2025
28 1,709
0.60
2025 28 331,366 2025
28 44,418
10
FATCA/CRS 1,500
11
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2007 - 2008
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2025

12

13

2025

2025

1970
28
2025
2025
1,312
2025
505,773
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6,686 201,989

7,554 101,654
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND

STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

February 28, 2025

{Expressed in United States Dollar, unless otherwise indicated)
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Arme

Irvrestrmant, in sedurition, at valuo f2oar of USD STEOL21T)
Cath

Eocekable for Units (ssued

B L r i g

by ats

Total assats

Liah Binies:

Papiinle for Irvestmiiots: pur choined

Fayiite for Ueis rodaamad

Urrpalired digratabion an forwird Sanrgn durr i by dathangé £onks sty
Ascruid peodevional fpe

Ascrud datnbeade's feas

Arorossd managamant fises

Aty sbhdian o - Sdminigtratney fe
Arorued rarmdar agant foos

Asrusd St odenpanys fisi

Arcrued othar eapansds

Total Babities

Boekt A saets At ibutable to Unitholders

Aoty of et A

Faid in cagaal

Cumudativi ret eamings and déivributions
Mt Assats Aty ibutable to Unitholders

Boet A nset Vadue par Uit

LI Mt by Distr i bion Cans IPY 18527565 + 24, 280 Lnits outstanding)

SR S nual Dt bution Class 17 5,593, 196,52d « 150211 Units cutitanding
[LISI Moty Civtrinution Oaas USD 792,855 ¢ 4,367 Uinits sutstanding )

GLISE S -Arv] Distribaation Class IS0 35, 768,245 + 1678539 Units ctatandmigh

3

02,540 808
2,895.911
I3z
264,397
5571
55,717,050

S0
4105
25640
S5
A dlE
T5355
2.5
12453
]
15,453
943,505

s FTR NS

Lse 15,17.352

§AISE1EE
=0 7.

cl

LR
TASS

2
&

El
=

]

The accompanying notes ane an integral pan of these finandal staterments.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

For the Year Ended February 28, 2025
{Expressed in United States Dollar)
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TR B A COITE:
Bt int
Tostid Imvirstrriviant Indomee

Expeniec
Banagamant b
Distribator's firas
Custiadiae and fub-ldmin Writo s S
Profmsonal fas
Trustes fiss
Apent company's fae
Transfer agpent fiis
CRby i plnsis
Tokil Enpurnary

B |rematrsen Income

Fealized gaing/Tlosses) ard change in unreaioed spgrecistion|depreciation
Fadigid ghinsffodme)
IO i AL
Fowgs gn curmindy tranubi b and forward foraign cumindy enchinge oiracts
Nk rodlinid |Gated
Charge in unrealized aporeciation/fdepracidtion)
I TS in Seduritadt
Fonagn cumancy tramdations and forward fonsgn trrincy aschango contracts
Mot phange in wnvoal ieind ape sl sion
et raalinad and changd «n unneas eed Loas i and apoeond aban

Bk inoreste in net setets etulting from operationt

The accompanying notes ane an integral pan of these finandal staterments.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN MET ASSETS
For the Year Ended February 28, 2025
{Expressed in United States Dollar)
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ncrease |Decreass) in Wt Assets from:

Dperations:

Rk stk income

Bt vl ivad lovies

Bt changa v urrakiced dppnasatian

T i b i Mt A P BT B NS

Dste bustlnn to Undthiodders:
WY btarnthly Divtribation Cliss.
WY S Annual Diinbtice Class
LS D Morthly Distribotion Class
USD Sami-Annual Divtribotion Oaw
Tolal Distribetions

Cogival Transactiin:
Uity auad
R o thly Divtribotion Cliss {8 Unit)
Y Sami-Annual Destnmution Cass {754 Units)
USD Mosthly Distribution Class (555 Units)
USE Sami-Annual Distrietion Oass (0TS L)

Urits rsdisermied

WY Boeithly Drtribotion Class {19,536 Unity)

Y Somi Annual Destrdbotion Cass {30,437 Unika)

LD Idarthly Dintritest ion Class (200747 Linita]

USD Some-Annual Divirbuton Cas (F5.FET Unis)
Mk docroan i nat assots rsubting from cagital transactions

Total Decrease in et Asoets
Bk Adieti:

Baginming of yaar
Ersd o yoar

The accompanying notes ane an integral pan of these finandal staterments.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended February 28, 2025
{Expressed in United States Dollar)
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Cath fivwd frim oper ating acthitied:
TN Cr g i A ansats riuiting from oo tions

Aefurtments to reconclls the neT increate by met atiet nesulting from operations To net cxsh provided by
ol ating acthities
Purthing ot irmnistyniants

Priaciseds frorn sahe and matunty of redtments.
Bt etz bhioe Snd [ cretion] of gremium Snd distaun i sn cannar st dibt sbligatiae and thaet larm
WAL

Risahpird lovsain an ek i i rties
Chare in unnal fad aOreCiation on it mants
Chigein uineaited depreciation on fonwacd foreign curmancy @rchings SO

Change in et ond liabilivien related 1o operationt:
Dovraass in intarest recavable

B raade 1t LW St

Disirais in adtrued agent company’s i
Bergdda in accruad custosian and wohb-adminitratos s Tees
Dacrams in aodroid datibutor's finm

Dairaasa i aceropd managarins e

D in sz rudd professanal fees

Bz rean in aocrued transfor agont feet

Dol iv aotrued trustes foes

It in Sosruad Sbhiy dxpinir

Boek caih provided by Gperating acthities

Cash fivws ueed in financing activides
Frocisech from Linits issued
Paprriien k5. 1 Uit ri@clisinmaed
Distribeginng paid 1 Unithaldar,

Poes ok e d in finending sdtivitiet

Boet Increze In cash amd forslpn cumency

Cath and forgign currancy a8 bagineing of yoar
Cath and fomign curmersy ot end of year

{36,558,939)
AL, 163k

{118.541)
599,157

(L372553)
488,335

73,871
15,521
213
10458
{1Ea1)
BAET)
PLERT)
2381
(T
(]

1523715
usp LEEEALL

The accompanying notes ane an integral pan of these finandal staterments.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

For the Year Ended February 28, 2025
Selected Per Unit Data and Ratios

{Expressed in United States Dollar, unless otherwise indicated)
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IFY Monthly

1PY SersbArniml

iy LSO Sa & 1

Distribution Cadt  Ditwilation Clate  Ditribagion Clits  Distiftastion Clase
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended  For the Year Ercded  For the Year Ended

2025 Febrig 2025  Februs 025 Febnm 205
Pt Avsat Waku, baginning of yiar Y LR 7,550 S0 B1EUsD 8.92
B irrrastmant insaemet 137 3L ] 037
Wk rzad ined and wevaad iz od pad naflossash [rary] [218) 012 013
Bt increaae dacraass) in met assets resuting from
it orrk frle] 115} ] 50
Lois Sutributiom ke == ek .13
Mkt At Waluie, &nd of yaar ¥y 5,803 1 7455 UEh BAl LD .30
Toral rirturry (270 {22 STi% 5.64%
Bt oa Supl ernant sl dakic
Man iraats ond of yoaer [0S P 165,180 I 5,533,137 UsD 733 LB 15,768
ki of daperras 1o average nat dasrty 5N 1T LEMR L1
Fati of Nt irnndsEeman | i oo Lo average et
BT LY 13 40T 4.11% 4700

U Saleyl b wrsing avorage Linets cutsiand g for tha year

The accompanying notes ane an integral pan of these finandal staterments.

90/211



DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS

{Expressed in United States Dollar)
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February 28, 2025
Principal
Curmen Samiiant
s 250,000
s 100,000
ush 200,000
a0 471588
=0 36007
(o e] L0000
L&D 00
(e G
=0 100000
U] 101
(E.7] Liassh
(E1] Lan
Ele) 100000
] 110,000
Ei] Ll
LS50 100,000
(5] 100000
(o] 1in000
7] 100,000
(E] 100000
=D OG0
sD 100,000
=] 03575
usn Bra3
=D 1000
s 125000
15D 871863
5D 2103106
UsD 125,000
S0 100,000
0] 100,000
) 100000
L] G000

% of Net
e jon hiints Fair Vake

TINED I NCOHVE SECUTTEIES |95.9%)

URITED STATES (35.5%

ASSETBACMED SECURTIIES |57 6%]

AMSET 30061 am &

5944 due D2/ 15/w LEY (1] 254,535
Aorec 2035 R 30T Clans &

0.00% due 08/15/ag1n n 93,937
kg Doks Covitevs Ruuer LLT Claas B

LAY e DRF1S/0E 1% ] 191,323
Abpenotive Lage Trust 20054 Cuss 182

£ A0 e D425 T AELEN
Alpesutive Lase Trust 2007 DA% O LAY

4,10 due DEF1/ 40 L& fl A
Arradgin Credit Acotptsrcs Reosphe Tt 2038-8 Claig ©

& 00% coe DR/1AMHW 5] i51017
drbor Reatty Conmercisl Rl Eytate St 2033001 iad Clsia

5, TG e DL 1AL L] 5,985
AREIT BO0A-CHED W8d, Clads &

680 e ] A A0 Al 5,300
ARET J025-CRELD Lk Clags &

5, T0% due 13017 /2n [\ %] 3, E80
BANK 30 7-BAES (asg XA

LI cue DAF1S/100 L] 13,9
BANE H00 T-BAEES Dagg X4

0.7 due OFF 1B VL] 15804
AN I A-DNEDD Clani KA

60 e D111 L] o
BANK 203 1-BRETS Clas A%

.07 cue 061564 mi w30
BANK J001-BNEIA Clan A%

A% e 121558 i 3,390
BANKS 2034-5YRI0 Casy B

5.10% due 041557 LR ] el
BB 2018-TARL Mortgage Trus Bl F

PG due ORASf LA 5] .98
BECMVS Mortgage Trust H0.07 Class &5

240 due BAFIR m: LER
BB DVS Mortgage Trust 2000408 Class A%

0% due 01553 o orER
BB Mortgage Tt 3031512 St A%

A0 e 1101550 ] B0
BB Mortgage Trudt 3083218 s XD

.1%% due 10715/l [k ] 1,331
BECAAS Mlor e e Trust 303845039 T A3

0% due D155 1 71004
B 034 FLI3 ILC Jans &

5 due D919 ien [ 100,282
Bear Stoarns ARM Trugt 2007: 1 Ot 241

559% due 02/25/49m 3 17,353
Bear Shoarns Assek Backed Seouritie | Trust JOOT HES Class 141

SRR aue DEA25aR m1 3344
Benchrrark 200 9-B13 Marigage Trust Cluss A3

2. T0% dus DRFIS/57 nd 91768
Benchrrark J020-B1% Mortgage Trust Class Ad

1.55% due D15/53 [ 109,100
Benchmark 2000-819 Mortgage Trust Class i

1.76% due DAF15/53m o1 3,31
Boncrrark 2080163 Mortgages Trust T XA

LT3 due DR 15 e i1} i7.153
Benchrark 208 1830 Morigage Trust Class A%

1.58% e 1111554 %] 107,978
Benchwrark 2008-v9 Mortgage Trus Tk A3

5 E0% cue D8/15/57 1% 103,128
BB TO24.5CH Mertgage Trut Clag AS

6.1 e DRA1SSLm [V 103,296
ERAD BO34- 50T erigage Truat Clan A5

S50% due J1S/STR o} 1maan
Brigge ierest CLON LEd Claw &

BF e DAAIG TN X ] 407856

The accompanying notes ane an integral pan of these finandal staterments.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS {continued)
February 28, 2025
{Expressed in United States Dollar)
Pringipal % of ket
Cumency  Amount  Ssourity Description At Falr Valus
FEGE INCOME SECUMTTIES {95.9%) {oontinued )
UINTTED STATES {3655 [oontiveed)
ASSET-BALKED SECURTIIES (S7.6%] {continusd)
BEFRT 203 2 FLE Buer Lbd Clans &
(i) A0TE 5B due RIS AL mI% [0] 44,305
B Corroranc ol Mortgage Trust 202 16007 Dlss E
S0 100,000 B de DR 15 30 ¥ w7
B Enrerrancal Mertgge Trust 2021502 Caws A
(1] A2 5.10% due 2153 1 40,544
BN Comtrrarcal Mortgage Teut 2023-LF2 Dt A
(1] BLAZE  5.00% cus DRFIS FR LK ] 61,309
BX Cantrrane i Martgage Truat 2014 8R0 Ol A
(1] 100,000 GO0 due DRSS U a.l 100,300
N True 3009-0C11 Chane
(EalH] 100,000 BN due A30AA M o 1,583
WA Trum 009-0017 Class X
(] 5133000 0.18% due 1309 a1 1 51,001
WK Trank ad-P50 Clin A
(] B 6.TE% due CEFIS I 5] EL11E
Caingian RMofgags Laan Trust Seeies 2006NCA Oy A3
(1] 100506 400N due I0/155W 3 185,759
Caral DR B0 R Dlsat &
uED SO0000 9 due D40 AT (X ] 503,500
0D 2017-C06 Merigige Troret Dad 04
U] 1o LE LII% due DRS00 a3 1300
CFE Morigay e Fsl- Thr ougth Trumt 20060 Clins 21
(] LE & cue O/ [F ] 15008
Citgroun Commerciad Mormgage Truet 30050005 Clivs X4
{50 ] 1421471 0. 71% due 21710/ 1] 1587
S group Commerca Modgage Trist 2297 Caaa i
(Fl:] An62a0 1% e G 14000 11} p ¥a
Cgroup Commerciyl Modgage Trost 30000555 O E
U] 100,000 340 due 1302040 ol Al498
Ofigroup Cemmercial Mongage Trut 20206085 Ol A5
(] 117000 1.92% due DI15/L S i 101,509
Colgsn Dty Cantprt US huer LLC Clags A3
(] 250,000 B0 due A203EM 0 [ ] SATERT
COLT 2031 Mertpage Loan Truat Class Al
(5] Aarass 6 e DAY R BRI (-] hFct i
COUT 20302 Morigaps Losn Trust Clags &
50 al1a] 660 cue 07/ S/ 68 e i
COMM 2015052 1 Morgage Tral Tt 18
uSD 1521257 .57 % due 0770 i i
CEAN 2019018 Corvoniraiad Mortpage Trust Clais Xa
0] 1o As1 D5 due 121550 1 ¥H.955
CEMAC 20ENET Clam &
(] A1188 1% due DEF1S/A7 5] 80,261
CENAC 2031 -E33 Cla A1
usD 95,901 3.05% due 10010434 o 0,175
[ Sngton Fingrd 3l Mortp spe Trugt 20324 G )
L&D T .00 due 002 SN 14 1T
Expter Antonchle Feoslvables Trust 10212 Sl 0
(7] LA 1A% due 111606 [ %} sl
FORE 3 Morgage Trust s 0
(0] 100,000 . 0% due 00710 s 13 258
FMNPAL Inkeres Strip Do C57
] 198481 3.00% due D3/25/52 k3 18505
IFNP Inerest Strip Clans C8
uSD 1221106 1.50% due DRfISST T} 193,333
FNPLS FENHCS Claan AF
(1] A9RISE 4004 due DOA25a8 ] ABLA5IS
IFH A RERAICS Claas AL
(=] 1000000 200% e DEF2S/S0 14 TEE, 583
FRPAS BESAICS Clany KT
usD 1,500,000 250% e 1202559 21 1,194,172
FAPAAces Tasg AIK
usn FERE S TABA due DRAI5 R0 os 100949
FNPMAS A Qass D
(] 2401555 1394 due O7F25/ 1 e 83,504
FAPAACes Dl X
(1] 4521319 1.13% due DBf25/31m 3 175,265

The accompanying notes ane an integral pan of these finandal staterments.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS {continued)
February 28, 2025

{Expressed in United States Dollar)

Principal % of het
Cumency  Amount  Ssourity Description At Falr Valus
L INCEME SECURTTIES {95.%%) {oontinued )
UINITED STATES 9%.9%) [continued)
ASSET-BALMED SECURTTIES |57.8%] {rontinued)
FPAACes Clns G

=D 4041047 1.10% rlie 20725 00 1% Wt 13,143

uEn 1503361 L 34% due 031251310 ol a2
(Fre-coie Mas: BEMICS 2323 Taas 58

Sn AIASD 007 due D7/ 15/438 s 2E0.598
o o Pl ez BEAICS Class SO

(1] 192338 DUD0% due DRSS 1S 1 1] 4. 526
[Fristce M RENBCS Cligg 2

(1] 982310 00 e 1101548 Ll 500,345
Friegcie A RENBCS Cligt 2P

LS50 TELITE B0 due 11029451 1] 4TR007
Gaaa andatinn Lid Cla &

{E0] SALAT AP cue 1F1N/AM s AL
Goodieap Home Improvement Solutions Tnet T024-1 Class A&

(o] 1500 1% cur 02 G0 ¥ PR
G n Morgage A B Cags 0

L] 1315731 200 due 091050 [ 194,552

(1] 1151610 3004 A 3020MEY 3 185,587
Governumnent Mutions Magage Assadablon Ces B

(61 LEEEE ] 300N e DRAI050 [k} laar
Gavirnemert Matiansl Mamgape Assesstion Tl

U] ER R A,00% ce DEAIGMD o3 1AL
Governmient Nationy Mangage Alscdation s 0

u5n 196003 5N e DO 1G/E1 ot Hr.208

7] 1ERLYAE Q60 e O TG/ l AL

(5] 102400 6L due DRFIEM BN 43 L

(£ ] LhAL 400 07 2% cue TP TGN [F b ]

] PR PR D% e CRFIG/GI [ 100,340

(5] 127739 Uit cue DR/ TG/ ol 150,400

L] 1461641 0.9 due DEVIE(ERE L 108314

U] LAk IR L15% cue DBAIG/RIN ot 104,275

(] LIEsAT 1300 due 11020451 ¥} 113
Gavn Matiana Marguge Asodalon Gatt W

(] 126.L8Y L e DOSIRS 4} 1mL862
Heovernment Mational Mogage Andation S B

(5] L17RASE 1.30% cle DRVIG/EDS ol 1912
frovermment Mationsl Modgige &uincalion Oare g

50 SHdA R B.00% cue DEAI0MT ki w5371
Dovernment Mationa Mofgage assosation Cass M

5D 1503733 &50% due 11120050 hd iy

L&D 2A7L5EE L50% due 0512051 43 P e
Govermment Mabionad Modgage Assodalion Sass Tl

usn kL 3,004 due 0902051 [ H a7
Cormat Wioif Trust 2004 WOIF Do C

] 100,000 BT due DEF15 ¥t wi 100,250
Coreyakons CRE NWotes 2021-FL3 18, Clans A

{Fe] [ h it cur OFF 19 & ndfi i
ot Securitied Trat 2057056 Clais Xa

1] B R 1.00% due DRFIGIS0N o 1hmaz
4 Mortpage Securities Trnd J00T 557 Class MA

(0] Lo L7 % due DBS1G 0N wd 17.56%
G% Mortgage Securithes Tra 2080 4GCA5 Oass X4

usD liasaie Ui due DEf13/53% L] T
Hardee's Fundging LLT COam A23

usn i8ars B.T1% due DEFIDfg0u 0s 233,184
Horieon Ancralt France IV Lbd Oam &

LED 245.8m 5 38% due DA 5 A na 43512
Irndtation Homes 2025-9FR1 Trot Oans T

(1] 555000 £ 1545 due DA 74T 10 535534
L. Mevrgam Dhite Comrerdal Msigage Srose Trust
OETMFF Claas O

(F=1E] A2 5/00% dup DT 15/ 3Enan 1% 2.108
P vbaegnn Chars Comterndnd ol MS TR Securitien Troet 2016 0F3 Class B

usn 100,000 DA due DRI15 g oz .o,
¥ Borgen Chade Comanend al Mortgage Seourities Trust
2020 L00F Clan E

usn 100,000 354 cue L3f0R e an 15764

The accompanying notes ane an integral pan of these finandal staterments.

93/211



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS {continued}
February 28, 2025
{Expressed in United States Dollar)
Principsl % of het

Cumency  Amount  Ssourity Description At Falr Valus

IR INCOHIE SECUMTTIES {95.9%] {romtinged )

UNITED STATES §5%.59% [contiwed)

ASSET-BALNED SECURTIIES |S7.8%) frontinued)
IFREE Commevcial Mofgage Seourites Trum 5005030 Clss 6k

LED 41429 1.18% due 11015 ym [T wEm 1065
MMW%TMZM&WUMH

S0 B38158 163 due D5/13/534 n1 ATOPE
LFTCRE 202001 L. Class 8

SR 100000 6. 10% due DEF1S T [ ] 53,975
LeanCere 2002 -CRET Bsusr itd Dam &

50 BS.9ED 5E% cue DL A A L] B5.960
Lesaare POS B0 5 CRES kooer LIS Claas A

uEn 100000 5768 due DRST a1 L.E EEt
1L ong Beach Misrigage Losn Trusk 2006-0 Otz 242

(EalH] 13x0.07 B e 1025 ok 413307
Sagrastite X1 aw, Claap Al

usE 500,000 554 due DO 15/ Ainy [T sm.77
Sarkle Poink €10 XX 1, Sl &

S0 500,000 5.76% due D725 3308 L] 500,483
B s Lyrcty ARt Mot Avoet Trush Series J007 DIARS Clats 1AL

50 EREYLE] LB Aue 2025 5ym [T 124356
BAFD 20 FLF kel s &

uEn E1.561 5530 aue 20015 R LK BLA5T
AR 22 Clsg A

Lsn WAL A58 due DEF 1NN 2.2 o7
SIF ] 200 AL Clins A

uEn 100000 6,000 cue DRI i 1m.a38
SR 200 SLLT LLE Clasg A

uEn 10000 200N due DAFIR A0 %] ol
Bigrpan Stankey Capital 1 2017 W0} Class €

(Fl:] 100,000 0% due 1715 0 |13 w30
Migagan Stankey Capital | Trust 2016-U811 Class XA

50 955713 LA due 0811503 o] 13,208
Bl Stanksy Cagital | Trust 2016-UH5A2 Clas XA

usn 565 BTN due 12115/ 1] 1398
Bergmn Stanley Cagital | Trugt 201741 Claat XA

uEn TELANE 1.3 due DB/ 19/50m oA el
Birpan Stacley Cagital § Trust 200009 Sapy XA

(5] 1500 ALY due 11005 020 i AL
Bdcrgen Stanley Capital | Trusk 2030-N5TH St A

=e B RaS 3504 cue DOF24 5 M [oH] a4
Mkl Commarcial Morigage Seosrfties Trant 2000-2FaC Class I

usn 113000 5.75% cue 12015 00 i o148
Mavient Privabe Education Rell Losn Trovt 20024 Cla &

D (1] 2.39% due D15 A0 1 i
N 20 SN Trust Class &1

use 5723 B4 due 11025/R2L0n 13 iR
OBY 034N Trust Class AT

usp B43A37 5374 due DEF25/By Li B41.581
Dagpon Thitd Clags &1

van S0.000 000 cue DLA2 RN LR AL
PRET J031-AND LT Clasy A1

uEn 51 A.7a% due 07255110 a4 iy
RAL Sarles J006-051 3 Trust Doy 143

(0] 301541 004 due AP g i¥anl
IRALN Sapries 2007-0M% Trust Cans AR

usp 921848 2,59 due DBIS/37E o7 A72a
RASE Seris ZO07-EMXT Trast Class A13

usD 12730 2,834 due DUA25/AME [FF 3 17988
R s i M ovme Espoiby L nan Trust 10064 Clac AF2

usn E35.A00 5104 due 02530 [ E ] 11310
Slamibd flas A

uEn 150,891 5,304 due D915/ 40 L] 180,322
S Profeusienal Laan Frogam 2007E LS Clas 8

usn 241871 3A9% cue 2IGM 00 04 184518
Sl Professorad Lasn Program S0LE LUC Claas ©

usD 250000 4168 due 11016 0 LR 158,904
Soha Trirt 2001-L0M0 Oz B

usn 7000 2704 due DRI L 1 L7341

The accompanying notes ane an integral pan of these finandal staterments.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS {continued)
February 28, 2025

{Expressed in United States Dollar)

Principal % of Kt
Cumency  Amount  Ssourity Description Bt Falr Valus
GG NCEME SECUMTTIS {95.%%) {oontinued )
UINITED STATES 5%.5% [contioued)
ASSET-BACMED SECURTTIES |57.8%] {rontinusd)
Spruce ME Mogage Loan Truet J000:5M1 Cla s ME

LED EEAN: 3.32% due D128 fs0iem o4 L] 335,579
STHND GRS FLY Lbel Class A5

S0 1o 5.3 due D715 et mo 27
Subwary Fureing ILC T A23

(1] S50 5300 cue DRFIDEAM [ ] 100,698
Switch ABS fvuss LLC Class B

(] 250000 6.20% due DG/ oy 250,853
oo Bl Funsirg LT Class AZ3

En 1assm 25A% Ak DEAIS/LIE o3 161520
Fionwl it Aoigage Trum 30228 Sy &Y

(ElH] HERDRL .75 due ORFIS/E] N 1% B35 TRA
TRTN 021 0 st Lad, Clans &

(1] A5A8Y  SUEI% cue D315 3aLY [\ 5] 85,711
GBS Commdrcial Morigagn Tratt 30347 €1 Cpa XA

S0 159,783 143% cue DG/15/50 L] 13,309
PHS Comentroinl Morigage Truot JOLTC30aan XA

(1] 1897226 1.10% e DB 15 /oom [ %] MET
Winrua SecuriBizathon Trooh 121401 Class il

usD SO0000  2B% cue /2% /EIG [ ] 286,455
Visrisd Sacuritifation Tt 2388 Oas Al

& A 600 e O3S 15/RRI 13 G136
Wi Secutititation Trad J024-5 Class Al

uEn AMISE BB e DT SGH N i 673319
Wit 2919-2 Trum Clags Ml

o 1570 BI6M due 21R5/5N iy 1A, 100
Wirihington Mutual Mortgage Pt Through Certificates WALT
Saries 200%-§ Trunt Clan 1501

(] 1136103 5.50% dus O291FS 18 1 e
Wt it Mt Mbsrtigage Parts Through Certificati WHBALT
Seriey 20002 Trunt Clas 1AL

En iB0E FO0% cue DAI25AT 3 1818

Washingter Mt Al fucked Comifizater WMAES Seret
JI0E-HLS Trust Chse JAD

(£ ] Lifdai &2 due 20029 R wy BERS6S
Wells Farge Commanclsl Mortgage Trst 3006-CH) Oty XA

{50 AL L5A% cue CAF1SS N 1} 987
Wl Fargs Cormerdroial MWicetgage Tront 200 7-C38 Clyp K&

{]e] THATY 090 due 07/ 15 500 [X] 1154
Wells Farps Cormmnencial Mortgagme Trost 2008051 Olyss &

] 1ama07 Y% due 12015/500 a a1,348
‘Webh Fargo Correnerclal Mortgage Trosk 2013 AVDE Class €

uSn 100000 3.00% due DY 15 3000 al il
Wels Fargo Morgage Back ed Securites H006-4R1S8 Trust Caan $AT

sn 23519 7.3%% due 0f25 508 [T 5573
Zay b W Clas B

{hoe] L0 6,00 cue DRAG Y 0% il
TOTAL ASSET BACK Bl SEQURRITIES 30 567,065
COVERNMENT BONDS [11.8%)
LS, Truarsury Bare

(F=1E] 550,000 A.15% due DBAISIS 0 S2%.07A
LS, Traasury Bords

L] 1850000 1.30% due DRI15M50 il 1519350

(ET] 000,000 LT e 11015050 5] apalt 00
TETAL GOVERNMENT RONCS Gasa TR
MORTGAGE - BACKED SECURTTIES |26.%%)
Farwniet M P

(] LIEAL ] oD% due 1L ] irhain

{50 ] LA 3.50% cue DLACASSE 1.} L8R
FRPAA ool

(0] 1rnlAch 300% due 00052 FE | 1547887

{E 0] H006 3.50% due U051 tht Freto %]

D 1A6rAL% 3,50% due DROLISE il 133,368

U] LifaA%E 4500 due DBAOLST Ll L3530

(] Llas0m S0 e DLOLED F 1164105

(E.7] Li1s.00m . due DEAOLTD L1 L1xal

5] TELSAL 5500 due DRADAMS La brp Hrk ]

The accompanying notes ane an integral pan of these finandal staterments.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS {continued)
February 28, 2025
{Expressed in United States Dollar)
Principal % of ket
Cusrency  Amount  Seourity Description At Falr Valus
FEGED INCOME SECURTTIES {95.9%) {montinued )
UINITED STATES (3%.9% [contioued)
MR TGAGE BACKED SECURTTIES |26.5%) |continusd)
FMPAA Foal (contired)
D LO9GAIE 5504 due 1100054 b1 110 1110537
Fre-ddie Mz Gald Pood
S0 193,588 3U50% due DRI LSS [ 362,399
Fre-tidhe Ma: Pool
AR 193,533 3006 due DRf0/A7 n? 353,747
= 1310064 B0 e DSIOLSD 1 1,155,457
(i 1009064 1,00% eue DE/OALT 11 1,771,902
ush TEIED  AU00% due DRADLD 13 717,489
D BIOLST 00N due DEADAND 12 BEZ5AD
GENEAA T el
(£ A6ED 2.50% Aue CRAIGMN] L€ A0 SED
TOTAL MIOR TGAGE BACKED SECURITIES 13.53% 455
TEFTAL LINITED STATES Sl i S 1
TOTAL FOCED IMO0ME SECUIRITIES [Codt LBD 57,603, 2E7) 5} 54, 40
TTAL INVESTIRVIENT & [ Cost LS 57608217} oS uD 5 N
CASH AMD GTHER ASSETS IN EXCESS OF LIABILITIES. &1 1,213,387
WET ASSETS. 100 4% U0 71,215

tl

TAAA Sty - Seds ity enethal Inde fegilrition gkt LA ol the Secunities At ol 3907, Thide teaaitii sy B faicld |8 Faestian

axampt from registration, typically ko gualilied ratituiona! buyers. Unless othensiue indicaled, theve soouribes are not comidered o be (laguid.
[E) Fiosting Rate a8 of Februsny I8, 2005,
£3) Warisbie Rae a1 of February 18 G025,
[4) StepRabe at of Februery 38, 2005

1P¥ Bosahly Distritation Class Forward Forsign Curmendy Exthargs Contracts

Kt Unrealived
Kotlonal  Semlement hotinma Uprwalized Ureealized Appreciation
By Cometarparly A Date  Sail A reciation (Deprecimbon) [Drpreciaion)
- Gl 156,035,055 OWIRANE USD |LD7GYH USD =Ush  [BIETLED [5063)
IFY IR 545,73 032EmE USD (3%, 814) = raal] L0
LU w07 OWERG0TE D [F ] = [135] 1135)
LIESE] G L N = [ ¢ S % |

IPY Semd-fnnual Distribition Class Forward Fooeign Currency Exchangs Contracty
Nt Unreadbed
Wotional  Settlement Kotional Urvealized Ureeallzed  &pprecistion/
By Commlnnparty Bt Date  Sall Amoust  Appreciation  (Depreciation) [Depreciation)
WP Erows Brothies Hanfimn & Co. 0,000 ORISR USD (] = 13) 8]
Py CETEE SATALA0EI3  DAfIEINES USD [3S3SLTTH = {4,506) [ree 318}
FY e EE 130,636,100 DLIER0ES WSO [ LI30,506 z |&A35) [EAZ5)
ELUR =) W06 OMIRONIE WD (5% 1% - {5, Tacy] 1570
usn -LSD (MO DETUSE  [M4909T)

Clavency begend

wy
Lk

Tapanete e
Usitad States Doler

The accompanying notes ane an integral pan of these finandal statermenis.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Far the Year Ended February 28, 2025

ORGANZATION

Doubletine Total Betum Fund (the “Series Trust™) is 2 sevies trust of the Nikks AM Offshore Funds, an operr-ended wunit
trust established by @ supplemental trust deed dated February 8, 2007 (the “Supplemental Trust Deed "), under the laws of
the Cayman lslands. Nikko AM Offshare Furds was establishesd by a master trust deed dated October 15, 2012 (the
“Master Trust Deed™], under the bws of the Cayman idlands and is Beensed with the Cayman idands Monetary Authority
pursuant to section & 1j{a] of the Mutual Funds Act (2021 Revision]. The Series Tnist commenced operations on March 38,
2017,

Tha Series Trust's assets are managed on a day-to-day basis by Nikko AM Global Cayman Limited {the “Manager™), The
Manages delegates imvestrment mansgement dulies to Nikko Adsel Management Co., Ltdl, (the “imeestment Manager).
The mstment Manager defegates emvestment managerment dutied to Doubleline Capital LP, [the “Sub-irmestment
Manager~), The administration of the Seres Trusl s delegated to Brown Brathers Harriman & Co, (the “Custodian”™ and
=sub-Admiristrator”), 8 limited parnershap ovganized under the laws of the State of New York.

The ireestrrent objective of the Series Trust is to achieve a mid to long term total return through income ard capital
spprecintion. Under rormal drourstances, the Series Trost will ireest over SO% of its net assets in rescentiol and
commercial mortgage: backed seourities, activelly allocated betwmen agency and non-agency securities.

Thise irvestments may indude mongage-bockied securities of any matufity o type, induding thote gusranteed by, o
sepured by collateral that b guaranieed by, the United States government, |1s agencies, instrurmentalities or sponsored
corparations, and privately issued mortgage-backed securities rated at the time of purchase Aa3 or higher by Maody's ar
b or higher by 5E&P or of an equivalent rating by any other natiorally recogrized statistical rating organization {“NHS80°)
that has been recognized by the U5 Securitins and Exchange Commission or urrated seourities that are determined by the
Imcistinent Manager of s debagates 1o be of comparable cuality. These wmvesiiments also indude, amang others, LS
Gowvernment morigage pass-through securities, collateralied mongage obligations, multidass pess-through securities,
private morigage pass-through seourities,

The Sexies Trust may alio irmest i thort term investments, Juch 83 rotes Biued by LS govermment agencies, and bands,
debt seaurities and other flaed income irstruments issued by W5 gevernmental or private-sector entities, or other asset-
backed obligations, colateralired kan obligations, and obligations of the U5 governeert and ts agendes,
instrument alities and spontored corporations.

The Series Trust may imeest in bonds of any credit quality, incheding those that ane at the time of investment urrated or
ratedd B+ or lower by SEP or Bal or bewer by Moody's or of an equivalemt rating by any othee NRSRO. Sonds and fixed
income instrumerts rated below nvestment grade, of such irstruments that ae unrsted and detesmined by the
Ireistinent Manager of i3 delegates to be of comparable quality, 2re Figh yield, Fagh risk bonds, commonky krdwn 84 jurk
bonds’. The Series Trust may imvest up to a third of its net assets in junk bonds, bank loans and assigrmerts that are either
rated baellgw invesiment grade or ane unated but determined by the Invesoment Manager or its delegates 10 be of
comparable cuality, and credit default swaps of compardes in the high yield unbverse.

The Sesses Trust may imvest 8 portion of its met assets in irverse floater securities and interest-only ard principal-only
seourities.

Under the terms of the Supplemental Trest Deed and the Master Trust Deed, OBC Caribbean Bark and Trust Company
{Cayman) Limited (formerly FirstCaribbean Imermatizral Bark and Trust Company {Cayman) Limited] {the “Trustee® and
the “Admiristrator”) is named as Trustes of the Series Trus,

The Mamager appoanted Mitsubishl UF Morgan Stapley Securities Coo, L1d. to act as Agemt Compary (the “Agent
Compary”] and the Manager sppointed Mitsubishi UF! Morgan Stanley Securities Co., Lid. and SMEC Trust Bark Ltd to act
at Gitributors (the “Distribut ors ™) of Units in Japan.
LUMANMARY OF SESMIFICANT ACCOURMTIMNG POLICIES

The Series Trust B an investment company that follows the accounting and reporting guidance in FASE Accounting
Standards Codification 346,
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued )
For the Year Ended February 28, 2025

SUMRMARY OF SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [oontinued)

Use of Extimotes

Tha accosmparyang financial staterants have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally acoepted in
the United States of America {“LL5, GAAFT], The preparation of financial satements in accordance with LS GAAR requires
the Series Trust's management fo meke estimates and aswmptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
Kabilities argd discloswres of contingent assets and Habilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amourts of reverues and experdes during the feporting period. Actusl results, including the oltirmate amount reslizesd
wpan thie aale of fair valeed ireetrents, could differ from thote estimates and such diffecences may be significant.
Basis of

Sepurity and contractual transactions are recorded] on a tradefcontract-date basit. Inberest income it recorded on an
effectes yisdd basis, net of any applicable withholding tax. Interest snpenie and other expensed are fecorded on an acomual
basiz, Realized gaing and loses from security transactions are computed on the basis of the average st of the seourities
schd or covered. Changes in the wabuation of investments are recorded in the Satement of Operations &5 unrealied
apprediation of depreciation.

Volwation of tmeestanenis

Bards and ofther debt securities, mcluding restrizted securities (other than sharl-term obligations bt mcloding listed
e are fair valued 21 their lost sale price in the prindpal market i which such securities are rammelly irasded, on the
basis of valuations furnished by 2 priding sendoe, use of which has been approved by the imvestment Manager, or If po sale
has poourred, the big price on the valuation date as provided by brokers who are marke? makers in the secusities. Al debt
securities with less than 12 moenths to maturity date, in principle shall be fair walued using an amortizes cost effected by an
efective yield acoumulatedsmorization method 1o ther maturity date with adjustments based on comparison with
rrarkel prioes &5 fegquined,

In accordance with the authoritative guidance on fair value measurements and disclosures under U5, GAAP, the Series
Trust disclpses the fair value of its vestments in a hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to vakation techraques used 1o
rreature the far value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to valustions based upon unadjested quoted prices in active
markets for idertical assety o Rsbilitien (level 1| messerement) and the lowett prisdty fo walustions baed upon
urabservable inputs that are sigrificart to the valuation (Level 3 rmessuremens), The guidance estabdishes three levels of
the fair vabue hierarchy as follows:

& Level 1 = inputs that reflect unadjust ed quoted prices in active markets for identical inwesiments that the Senies
Trust has the sbility 10 sccess gt the measurament date:

= level } = Inputs other than cuoted prices that are significant and observable for the asset or bty either
garecily or indirectly, inclusiing ingats in markets that are rod consiceres to be sctive

& Level 3 - inputs that are significant and unobsenable,

Ingnats ane wsed in applying the varous valuation tedhnigues and broadly refier to the asumptions that market participants
use bo make valuation desisions, including assumptions about risk inputs may nclude price information, specific apd broad
credit date, ligquidity statistics, and ather factors. A finandal instrureent”s level within the e vabue Rierarchy is based upon
the lowest bevel of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Howewsr, the cetermination of what
constitutes “observable” requires signficant judgment by the Investmnent Manager, The imastment Manager considers
obtareable data to be macket dats which @ readily svailatde, regulsrly distnbuted of updated, reliable and serifiable, not
propeietary, mnd provided by independent sources that are actively imvobed in the relevant market, The categodication af a
funarsciad instrument within the hierarchy s based upon the priging transparency of the instrument ang does mot necessarily
correspond 1o the investment Marager's perceived risk of that instrument,

Irneesst et s whose vahaes ane based on the quoted market prices in actiee markes, and therefone dassified withan Leved 1,
winld nclude setively traded eguities, and cerlain LS. government and sovensign obligations. The irvesiment Manasger
wonld not adjust the guoted price for suchinstruments, even in situatiors whene the Series Trust held a bege position and
2 sbe could reasonably impact the cuoted price.

Imaestinents that trade in marckets that are not considersd o be active, but sre valued based on quated madoet prices,
dealer quotations o alternatiee pricing sowrces supported by obserable inputs are classified within Level 2. These indude
mvestment -grade debt securities, short-term investments and forward foreign currency exchange contracts and may alsa
include cortain amed-backed securities and collateralived mortgage obligations.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
Far the Year Ended February 28, 2025

SUMRMARY OF SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [oontinued)

Valuatron of tmeestemends [conbinued]

Az Level ¥ imeestments include posiions that ae not traded in active markels amd/or are subjest 1o rarsfer restrictions,
waluations may be adjusted to reflect @Squichty andfor non-transferability, which ane generally based on available market
nfoermation.

Imeeutments cassified within Level 3 heee sagnificant unobservable inputy, as they would trade infrecuently. Level 3
matmument s would indude contain sset -baded secuities and collateralined mortgage obligations. Al obiervable prices are
not avallable Tor those securities, 1he Series Trust would use valuation techniques to derve the fair value.

The inputs or methodology uses for veluing securities are not necessanly an indication of the ritk amodated with irmeiting
in thase seourities.

Thae fellowing table presents the Snarcial irtruments canded on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities by caption and by
bevel wathic the valuation hierarchy as of Febeuary 28, 2025, Furnther classifications of the finendal mstruments are
prosented in the Portfolio of iInvestments,

Eoets at Falr Value Fal Walue at
Levell Level 3 Lievel B Febriary 3, 2005

Fiugd Ingarnin Saturitiin [ETH] = LT 52,549,518 Li50 = LS 52540040

Tozal [ - LD Spsa 50 - Ui spsd

Llaf Bies ot Falr Valus Falf Walus a1
Level 1 Level 2 Lirved 3 February 3, 2025

Forward Fadsin Currnly

Enl’.hxlli oty LS = Uf {356 4400 IS0 = UE I.ZEE,A'HH
Tonal (L] - Lk asidl) LIk = L5 [256,440

During the year ended Febroary 28, 2025, there were no transfers in or out of Level 3. The Sedes Trosts policy it 1o
determine lewdlling and assess all transfers 25 at a year end date.

Fovenfrt Corvitriey Tramlatiom

Assets el abilities held in currencies other than United States Dollar {"LU5D" o the “Funclicoal Curtency™] ane iransdat ed
1o the Functional Cumrency ot the rate of exchange prevailing at the financisl statement date. income ard eapenses are
trarslated at the rate of exchange prevalling at the date on which the income or expense bs incurrec. Aealized and
urrealkzed gains and losses arking on foresgn currency tramsactions ane inchuded in the Statement of Operations in the year
i wehich they ocour,

The Sedies Trust does not solate that portion of the results of cperations resultang from changes in foreign exchenge rates
an nvestments from the fluctuations arising from changes in market prices of sesurities held, Sueh fluctuations are
inchaded with the net realized and unrealized gain or loss from ivvestments,

Income Towxes

Under the current I of the Cayrran idands, there aré no incomed, withPbolding, capital gins or other 1axed payable by
the Sexies Trust, In certain jurisdictions other than the Cayman iskands, Toreign taxes may be withheld a1 spurce on
civickends and interest receied by the Series Trust. Capital gains derived by the Serles Trust bn swdh urscictions generally
will be exempt from foreign inoome or withholding faxe at sounce The Series Trust infends to conduct its affaes such that
it will not be subject fo ircome fax in any jurisdiction. As a result, no provision for income faxes has been made in the
finarecial statements. Unitholders may be faxed on their proportionete share of the Series Trust™s tax basis income based
an thesr indivicual circumstances.

The Series Trust folloews the authoritative guidance on accounting for and disdowre of uncertaiinty in tax positions
{Fanancial Accounting Standards Board {"FASE") - Accounting Standards Codification 248, which requires the Manager to
determine whether o tax position of the Seres Trust is more likely than nat 1o be sustained upon eamination by the
spplicable tadng authority, including resolution of any rdated appeals or Eigation procssses, based on the technical
merits of the position. For tax poditions mesting the more likely than not threshold, the tax berefid recogrired in the
funarcial staternents is reduced by the langest benefit that has a greater than fifty percent ikelikood of beang realised upon
witimate tetemant with the relevart tacing authority. The Manager hat detesmined that there is minimal or no &fect on
the firangial statement s being urder this authoritative guidance.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2025

SUMRMARY OF SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [oontinued)

Fovweard Foreign Currency Exchomge Conbrocts

The Series Trust may enter into forwend foregn currency exchange comracts 1o hedge against forslgn currency suchange
rate risks on all or o portier of nor-USD dencminated imeestments o for efficer portiolio management purposes, ‘When
ertering into a forward fordgn cumency exchange contract, the Series Trust agrees to receive o deliver a fimed quartity of
foreign cumency for an agreed-upon price on an agreed future date. These contracts ane valued daily, and the Series Trust's
net equity therein, representing urrealiced appreciation{depreciation] on the comtracts as measured by the difference
between the forwand forsign currensy mochange rates ot the dates of erdry ird the combrscts gnd the Sorweed rates at the
reparting date, is indluded in the Staterment of Asdets and Liabilities. Realised and unrealived gains and lotses ore included
in the Statemert of Operations.

These nstruments imobve market risk, ooedit risk, or both kinds of risks, in ooess of the amownt recogriced in the
Satement of Asiets and Liakilities. Rishs arke from the possible irability of counterparties to mest the tenmi of their
contracts and from movement in cumency and securities values and irterest rates. In addition fo the Class lewd hedging
the Seres Trust had net realized koss of USD 7,542 on 9 forward foreign aurency exchange contracts during the year with
an gverage notionsl of USD 48,039 and an sverage Lerm to maturity of 5 days, The Series Trust bad ret realiced loss of USD
57,305 on 33 forward forelgn currency exchange contracts held at the JPY Monthly Qistribution Class Hedged leved during
the year with an average rational of USD 955,552 and an average term to maturity of 29 days, The Serles Trust also had
net realized loss of USD 1,790,698 on 41 forward forsign currency exchange contracts held a1 the JPY Semi-Annual
Distribution Qass Hedged level during the year with an sverage notional of USD 22,453,543 and an swerage term to
matieity of 29 days.

‘While 2l or substantially all of the assets of the Series Trust may be beld in U5, Collars, it s intended for the Series Trust 1o
erter mto hedging arrangersents for the berefit of JPY Morthly Distrbution Class Units and JPY Serri-Anrual Distribution
Class Units, which are derominated in Yen Those arrangements will be 1o hedge against adverse movements of the
currency of denomination of the ivestments in the Series Trust relative 1o Yen, Any profits, gains, losses, costs, income
&rd expenciture psadsted with such hedging arrangements will be borre by each clas,

Fog the year ended February 28, 2025, the notional exposure on the JFY Monthly Gistribution Class Units and JPY Seard-
Annial Distribution Cass Units forward cummensy eschange contracts apgroaamated the average net assets for each dass
being niet long JPY and short USD. Open contracts ot year end are disclosed in the Portfolio of inestrments,

Cosh ond Foreign Curremoyr
Cash ardd foreign currency compeises all currency hedd with the Custodian, and overnight and other short tenm placements
with otber fnendal institutions,

The met assets of the Serles Trust are divided imo JFY Monthly Distibution Class Unks, JPY SemibArnual Distribution Class
Units, LSE Morthly Distribution Class Urdts and USE Semi-annual Distribution Class Units, The Units are deromirated in
United States Dollar and Japenese Yen 1PY Manthly Distiibution Clavs Units, 1PY Serri-Annual Distribufion Clast Linits, LSD
Monthly. Distribution Class Units ard LSD Semi-Arnual Distribution Class Units are available to an digibde imeestor whao is
ary person, coaporation of entity which B not [} 2 dtiten o resident of the U5, a partnership organized of existing in the
LA, o By corparation, thust of other entity oeganised under the ws of o existing in the US; (i) person of enity resident
or comiciled in the Cayman klands [exchucing any object of a charitable trust or power or an exempted of non- esEdent
Cayman islands company]; (i) urable to subsorbe fior or hold Units without violating applicable brws, or (i) 2 custodian,
nomires, of trustes S any person, o poration of entity described in (i) to (5] abawe

The Menage may determing fo isue ane or more classes of Units of the Serdes Trust without prioe notice to of written
corsent of the Unitholders,

Al of the met assets attrbutable to JPY Manthly Distribution Class Linits, JPY Semi-Annual Distributeon Class Urits Class,
USD Miarthly Distributien Cass Units ard USD Serra-Annual Distributeon Class Lnits, are held by two romines acoount
Unitholders.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Far the Year Ended February 28, 2025

URITS [continued)
1P Moethly  IPY SembAnnual | USD Monthly  USD Semi-Amnual
[Dimribustion ase Digtribution Class  Diswiation Cas Disvibation Cass  Total Sedes Trus
Balance ot Febnuary 79, 2024 sk 2OTEIIL LSD IS AGTO%E U0 937Alr USD 15872910 USD SB.245557
Subacriptions during the yoar i 400 4,584 Lalaan 1,331,338
Kedomphions during the year {571, 446) {1.518.547) {17,000 (2,705, 5%1) {5,315, 350)
DistriBsAinns {FoEE) {431,307 {24,43) {210,606} (A5, 415)
Bt {d e s incraa s in et ansets
rasulting from epenmices 35551 {321,335) 49,337 A0RUZR 600,068
Bt Adiety it Febralry 28, 2025 US 1056115 USD 37MIG00E LSO 793865 USD 15768345  USD 54773335
Bhamber of LUnits n e s
Fobnuaey 79, 2034 AT EOE TED,345 114,558 1.773,717 2,718,433
Wity A uird duning the year = P 555 210:219 211,00
Writs nindinernigd during: Ene yaar [13.525) {30432 (2 7aT (295,297} {366,012)
Brnbar of Lintsin ivsae 3t
Py 28, 2025 AT 750231 24,367 L6863 2,563,457
Bt st Walua par Undk at
Fabaroaey Ti.L 2005 s 4515 UsD d%4T  USD B4l ush 2.30
Surlripirons for Diwls

17¥ Morihly Distribution Class Units and JPY Semi-Annual Distribution Class Urats were first issued 21 an witial issue price
of JFY L0GD per Unit, The mirimum intial subscription for JFY Monthly Ctribution Class Urits and JPY Semi-anmual
Disteibution Class Units per subscriber is 1 Unit or more, and in muktiphes of 1 Units thereafier,

LIS0 Marrthly Distribution Cass Uritd and USD Semi-Anmuea] Distribution CRas Urdts were firs? imced a1 20 nitial moue price
of USD 10.00 per Unit. The miniroum initial subseription for USD Monthly Distribution Class Units and USD Semi-Arnual
Distribution Class Units per subscriber ts 10 Units or more, ard in mubtiples of 1 Unit thereafter,

T Manager may wabie of change the mirsmum imtial and additional subscription amounts set forth above an its sole
discretion fram time fo fime.

Ll Redemplions

The Serses Trust fecognizes redemplions in accordance with the autharitaties guidanse on distinguishing liabiities Trom
etuity, ledemplions, whether expressed a8 United States Dollsr, Japanese Yen o Units, are recognined o2 liabilities when
each of the Japanese Yen and United States Doflar Unit amounts recuested in the redemption notice becomes fiued, which
generally may ocour either at the thme of the recelpt of the notice, or on the last day of a flscal year, depending on the
mature of the reguiss. As a result, redesmptions paid after the end of the yesr, but based upon year end ret assets ane
reflected & redemptions payable at februsry 28, 2025, There were USD 4,106 of redemptions payable for Urited States
Dodiar Units as at February 28, 2035 inchuded as Payable for Units redeemed in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities.

Fepurchase of Linis

Units may be repunchased at the option of Unitholders on each Repurchase Day {eadh business day, commencing on March
30, M2, or such other day or days as the Manager may frarm time {0 time determine in respect of the Series Trst aboa
" Waluation Cay™L

Unitholders wishing 1o have Urits repurchased must send a completed Repunchase Motice to the Distributors so as to be
recetved by the Distributors no later than 300 pan. (Tokyo time) on the rdevant Repurchase Cay, The Distriuiors wil
send the completed Bepurchass Noticss 1o the Sub-Administeator by no later fhan G003 pon. | Tokyo time] on thi relevant
Arpurdhase Day or by such other time a% the Sub-Administrator may in any particular case determine.

if the relevant Repurchase Notice is not recerved by the Sub-Adminisirator by the relevant time, the Aepurchase Notioe will
be held over wntd the next following Repurchase Day after the Aspurchase Notice s received and Units willl then be
recenmed at the relevant repurchase price applicable on that Repurchase Day,

& Repurchite Nofice, onge given, i irresocable.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS [continued )
Far the Year Ended February 28, 2025

URITS [eontinued)

Comperkon Redemplion

In the event that the Tasstee or the Marages shall determine that ary Units of any cdass of a Series Trust ane being beld by
or for the benefit of a person whe is not an Eligible vestor for such Series Trust or that such holding would sause the
Trust or the Series Tiust fo be reguired to register, be subject to tax or violate the bws of any jurisdiction, or if the Trustes
or the Manager haz reason to doubt the begitimacy of the source of monies used 1o fund the subsaiption or purdhase of
such Units, or far whatever reron (which may not be disclosed by the Trustes of the Manager 1o Unitholders) that the
Trustes o the Manager considers appropriste ot its absohute discretion hoving regard to the interests of the Unitholders of
the relevant Cass of the Urithokiers of the Serles Trust as a whole, then the Manager, after corsultation with the Trustee,
may direct the holder thereof to sell such Uinits within 10 days and provide to the Trustee and the Manager evidence of
such sale, failing which the Manager may redesm such Units,

Terminotion of the Serics Trusl

Upon termanation, the Manager will realize ol the mssets of the Series Trust, and alter paying out of retaireng adequate
provision for 8l liabilities property payable and retaining providion for the costs of the ternination, the Trustee shall
disiribute the procesds of that realization {o the Unitholders proportionately to their respective interests in the Senies
Trust as of the date of termination of the Senkes Trust,

Drilritaertions fo Unithoiders

The Manager may, in s sole discrdtion, declare distributiond and mo guarar ee i made that these will take place.
Distribution will be dedared on each Business Day immediately prior to the Ex-Distribution Date for IPY and USD
Distribtenn (lass Units or such other date o dates a3 the Manager ray from time 19 time determire in respest of the
Series Toust {“Distribution Record Date™) and caloudated on the fidteenth (15th] day of each month for Monthlly Distribution
Chass Units and the fifieenth (151h] day of March and September of eadh year for Semi-Annual Cistribution Class Units (if
such day is not a Susiness Cay, then on the following Susiness Day), or such other date or dates in sach manth a5 the
Manager may from time 1o tine determmne in respect of the Seried Troat {"Ex-Distribution Date”™). Dustribation Period i a
periad commending from the calendar day foflowing the precsding Distribution Record Date and ending on and induding
the Distribution Recond Date. The cistributiors will be paid on the relevant Cistribution Payment Date, providied that such
amour {if ary} declared with respect 1o the relevant Cass of Units in respect of the applicable Distnbution Period shall
anly be paid out of the Series Trust's net income, realized and unreslized capitel gaing and ary distributable furds of the
Leries Trust attributable fo such Clads of Uinits ot defermined by the Manager.

The checlaration of distibutions to Unitholders reduces the Class Lewel Net Asset Value per Unit withoul any corresponding
charge im dhe fumber of Oads Level Units ped Unitholder. This results in @ Unitholder's averall imvestinet i the Series
Trust being reduced, bn addition, any distributions during a Distribution Perod which are in excess of the Series Trust's net
ncrease in net assets resulting from operations results in a portion of the distribution being return of capital,

The amount of didtributions, i any, will be determined by the Manager in it4 sole ditcreSion, and no regresentation of
guarariee it made that a distribution will be made in respect of each of ary Distribution Period.

Copitalzation
The Met Asset Value per Urit is cakulated for each Cealing Day {each Valuation Day, or such other day or days as the
Manager may from time 1o time determing in respect of the Series Trust), by dividing the difference in w2lue between the
Series Trust's sssets and liskilities finchuding aocrued fees end expermes of the Series Trust] by the nurber of Units
surtetansng.

The Trust Deed stipulates that the umber of Units o be issued in the Series Trust shall be unlimited a3 the Manager shall
determing and shall be without par value

DERTVATIVE FINANCIAL BYSTRUMENTS

Accounting Standand Codification [ASC] 815 10-50 requires disclosures about derivative instruments and hedging actisities.
it requares that the Series Trost ciscless: a) how and why &n ertity uses derivative insbe t4, by v o e
instruments and related hedged Rems are accounted for and c] how derivitioe instiuments and relsted hedged items
afect an entity's financial pesition, finandsl performance and cash Ao,

The Series Trust tramsacts forwand dervative nstruments primarily for bedging pur poses with each irstrument's primary
rick expoiure bedng foreign exdhangs ritk. The forward Sarsgn cumency exdhange conbracht held by the Series Truit do fot
gualify as hedges for accourting purposes urder the requirements of ASC B15.

102/211



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued )
For the Year Ended February 28, 2025

DERMATIVE FINANCIAL BSTRURAENTS {conttinuid)

Tha fair value of these derivatioe instramers is induded in the Statermerd of Assets and Liabilitees with changes in fair
walue reflected as realized gains/[losses) or net change in unrealized appreciation{cepreciation] on dematives within the
Statement of Operations (Mote 2],

The Series Trust may snter icto an international Swaps and Derhatien Assaciation, inc. Master Agreement [T150A Master
hgreement”] with it counterparties n ofder to mitigate counterpsrty risk. The 1504 Master Agresyrent is typically
negHinted by the Series Trest and B3 courterparties, contairing the bi-laters] tenms and conditionn for all subiecuent
desivatien tramsactions. The I50A Master Agreement allows for the neting of ol amounts owed to or due from
couterpanty into a single net payment If a orecit event o default should ocour,

The Sexies Trust has elecied to nod offset fair value reccivables and payables for derividive contracts on the face of the
Statement of Assets and Liabiities,

A1 February 28, 2025 the Seres Trust had entered irmo the folloving dervative Babslities by counterparty net of amounts
available for offset under a Master Netting Agreement (“MS3A™) and mat of any collateral pledged by the Saries Trust:

et Amstint of
Dertvative Uabilkies Derhvatives Morecash Cash Derhative
Cousterpaty Subjectto s MA _ Availabie for Offier Collatiral Medged  Collatenl Pladged Lighiking®
By Brothars Hierman & 03, LSD 1 50 B ] = USD = ush 1
L= H 4] 256,433 - - - 256,433
Teoral usp TR A UsD - W50 - U8 - Win 250,330
SRt TR T Sl s TR ol Ao rec el payable froen Bha party in thg avern of delact.
A1 February 28, 2025 the Seres Trost hed entered into the following derratives:
Adiet Derivatived Derivatives
Dy itive i Sy il Santemant
Mot Arcousnted for as of Assets and of Assets and
Mesging Instruments Liakilisies Lecation Fair Walue LighiBties Location Pair Value
Forward foriign duringy  Unrialined aoprediabon Urinealinid dispristiation
SuChang o Sy o doraed foraign o forwar d foaipn
{Lurmarnzy Rita) cuTency uthaegy LD = curfiny dathange Ls0 (256,440
I:I_!pﬂfl'll:h CoeTbradts

The effect of dervatrig indthements on the Statement of Operations far the year ended Febreary 28, 2025

Change in Unnealiced

Lovcation of Realired Apprecation or
Dl athve s Mot ALcounted Galm or [Loas) ‘Gain o [Loas) |Depeeciationg on
Hoe ot Hedging Indruments on Derivativet on Dy atiee Den it
Bt et zind] [y o Tormrar d Foreign
Forward foraign sumansy Saifindy Sullegd COrasiL
exchange conbracis changd In unrtized deprisciation on forward
{Currarsy Risk) doniign furtinty eazhangs sontr it L5 11 #65,545) LS [AE5R.935

PAANAG EMVENT FEES

The Marager receives, out of the assets of the Series Trust, a management Tee of a 1o%al up 1o 0.68% per anpum (0.03%
pef anrum in respect of fee for the Marager, 0.25% per anrurm of the Net Asset Value up to USD 400 rillion and 0.22%
per arnum of the MNet Asvset Value over LSD 400 million in respect of fee for the imiestment Manager, and [LA0H per
arnum of the Net Asset Value up to USD 200 million and 0.35% per anrum of the Net Asset Value over USD 400 million in
respect of fee for the Sub-irvestment Manager) of the Net Asset Vabue scerued on, and caloulated as a1, each Vahation
Day and payable manthly in armears. in adeition, the Manager sl remburses, out of the asses of the Series Toust, for sty
expinses incumned by 2 In the proper perormance of its powers and cuties as permitted wnder the Master Trust Beed,
During the year ended February 28, 3025, the Manager earred fees of USD 375548, of which USD 259,365 |s =ill
outstancing &5 of February 28, 3025,

The Manager pays the fees of the mviesstment Manager out of its fees. The imvestment Manager it resporsible for paying

the fiees of the Sub-imestement Manager and ary of the Irvestenent Manager's delegates or other panies appoant ed by the
Imcestnent Manager 10 perform its furctions in respes of the Series Trusl.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
For the Year Ended February 28, 2025

CUSTOOLAN AND SLUE-ADMINISTRATOR'S FEES

The Custockan and Sub-Adminbstrator receives a custody fee caloulated ard pald monthly based on total assets and
trarsaction voluime,

The Custodian and Scb-Adminstrator recehms, out of the amets of the Seres Trust, an administration fee [induding
trapsfer agent fea} caloulated basnd on the Met Asset Valee as at gach Valuation Cay at the follpwing arnual rate

- 075 up to [and induding) USD 250 erilion;

- (06 up 1o (and including) USD 500 rallion;

- (LOm% over USE 500 million,

Such adminisiration fee it payable monthly @n amears, and subject 1o the minimum annoal fee of USD ED,000 The
Custodian and Sub-Administrator also receives, out of the assets of the Series Trust, fees for curronoy administration and
expculion services at the rate of DUO5% per anrum of the Met Asset Value of the relevant Unil Class, subject to the
remnimum anrual fee of SD50,000, in adoition, the Custodian and Sub-Admirdsomon receives customary safekseping fees
and transaction charges. Ml out-of-pocket sxperses of the Custodian ard Sub-Admanistrator ane bome by the Sedes Trust.
During the year ended Fabruary 28, 2025 the Custodian and Sub-Administrator amed fees of US0 94,702, of which LSO
22850 are still outstanding as of February 28, 2035,

The Trustee receives, out of the assets of the Semkes Trust, @ combaned fee &t the date of B015% per anrum of the Ne2
Asset Value scorued on, and calculated az at each Valuation Day and peyable quarterly in amears, subject to a minimem
amnizal fee of UAD 15,000, Buring the year ended Febouany 28, 202%, the Trustee earned fees of USE 15001, none of which
ere outstarsiing as of February 28, 2025

AGENT COMPANT'S FEES

The Agert Coimpany receives, out of the a4ie1s of the Series Trust, a fee at the rate of D025 per annum of the Net Acie
Vale acorued on, and cakoslated as at, each Valuation Day and payable quarterly in arrears. During the year ended
February 18, 2075, the Agent Company earned fees of USD 11,046, of which USD 1,709 is still outstanding as of February
28, 2005

DISTRIBUTOR'S FEES

Thee Dastribudors receiee, out of the asets of the Series Teust, 8 fee ot the rate of 0603 per annurm of the Net Assel Value
mecrund on, snd caliulated o ot sach Valustion Day and payasble quartedy in anmears. During the yesr endesd Febrousry 28,
2025, the Distributors earned fees of USD 331,366, of which LSO 44,418 Is still cutstanding as of Februany 28, 2025,

OTHER FEES AND EXFENSES
Tha: Acwranistratof receines USD 1,500 per armum far FATCA f CRS comrplance services,
FIMANCIAL RISK MARAGENMENT

Tha Series Trust's activities expose it 10 a varlety of financial risks: market risk {induding price sk, interest rate risk, and
currEncy ritk], eredit risk and lcuidity k.

Markel Risk
All ipreestinents pfesent @ risk of ks of capital. The imestment Manager moderates this risk through a careful selection of
secunties and other finandal insirument &

That Series Trust's imestment management process is desoribed in Mote 1. The primary determinant of the Series Trust's
abality to mest its objecthe of mid to long term capital appreciation while samting inmme B dependert on the
performand: of the imestment o the residerdial and commercial mort gage-becked Jecwrities. The Series Trust'™s owerall
marke! positions are monitored on a daily basis by the Series Trust's investment Manager,

The walue of the Series Trus™s inveitments is affected by a pumber of factors, ncluding but niot limited to, changes in the
wider etonomy, finandal and currency markets, foreign curmency exchange rates, imterest rate movermertd and credis
ratings of cebt issuers. The Seres Trust may enter into Torsard foregn ourrensy exchange contracts wheth te varying
clegfess represent a rarket ik in excess of the amount reflectesd on the Sedies Trust's Satement of Assats ars Lisbilities,
The national amount of the confract frepresents the edent of the Series Trust's participation in these financial irstruments.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued )
For the Year Ended February 28, 2025

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [continued)

Markel Risk [continued)
Market risks assodated with such contracts arise due 1o the possible moverments i foregn currency exchange rates
urderlying these instruments.

Crher market and credis rkks inchuds the possibility that there may be an illiguid markes for the cordracts, that the change
in the value of the contract may not dicectly correlate with dhanges in the value of the underlying currencies o thit the
counterparty 10 8 forward contract defauls on itd obligation 1o perform under the terms of the contract. The Seried Trust's
Exposure 10 boss fue 10 counterparty non-performance on open futures, forward foreign currency exchange, swap and
options contracts is limited 1o the unrealized appreciation inkerent in such financial Irstruments which are recogrized in
the Satement of Assets and Liabilities.

Inferésd Hale Bk

Thae Series Trust's expoture 1o charges in interest rates relates primarily to the Series Trust's imaestments in debt securities
comiracts, irmerest rate flucteations ey also affect the fair value ard pricing of derivative instruments purchased or sold
short by the Series Trust, The Invesiment Manager continuously monitors the Series Trust's exposure to nterest rate risk
ard the Senies Toust's overall interest sersithvity on a regular basts,

Agipf.backed fecwitied imvesimenl Rk

Asset-backed seourities imvestment have the risk that bormowers may default on the obligatiens that underlie the asset-
backed security and that, during pericds of Talling interest rates, asset-backed seduities may be called or prepasd, which
mmay result Bn the Series Trust having 1o reirvest proceeds in other irvestments at 8 lower intenest rate, and the dsk that
the impairment of the value of the collateral undeslying a seourity in which the Senies Trust imvests [due, for example, to
non-payment of loans) will result in a reduction in the value of the security,

Conceniraimon Risk

Thet Series Trust may imvest substantially in bonds Bsved by U5, agendes In accordance with Bs prircipal ireestment
strategies. Secauvie such Securitics are Biued by a limited number of gowermment agended, sny actual or potential
disruption to those agendes could present a risk to She Seried Trust, Farnie Mae and Freddie Mac, which are ather
goverramer-sponsored issuers of morigage-back securithes similar 10 these guaramesd by Ginnie Mae, suffered such a
disnuption in the margage crisis of 2007 - 2008 and were placed under federal consenatorship at that time. Girnie Mae
secueities, unlike those of Farnie Mag and Fresddie Mac, are backed by the full faith and oredit of the LLS. gowerrment and
arn subject to the risks of U5, government secunities. Similar to other issuers, changes to the finandal condition or credis
rating of the LS. govermeent may chuse the value of the Series Trest's exposure 1o LS. agensies seaurities to decline

Mortgoge-bocked secunties Risk

Mortgage-backed securities represent interests in “poods” of morigages and are subject 1o credit, mterest rate,
prepayment and extension risk. Morgage-backed securithes react differently to changes in interest rates than other bonds
ard the prices of mortgage-backed seounties may reflect adnerse economic and market condifiord. Small movements in
ntenest rabes {both inoreases and deoreases] may quickly and significamtly recuce the walue of certain mortgage-backed
spouities. Defsull or bankrupboy of & courderparty o & fo-be-arnounced tramsaction would expose the Series Trust 1o
posibleloss,

Morigoge-refoted ood Other Assel-Backed Securities Risk

The Series Trust may inves? in mortgage-related and other asset-backed seourities that directly or indirectly repreient a
participation in, of are secured by and payable from, loand on real property. Morgage-related securities are crested from
pools of residential or commerdal rmortgage loans, indluding mongage lbans made by savings ard loan nstitutions,
maorigage bankers, commerdal banks and others, These securities provide a momthly payment which corsists of both
intenest and principal, inferest may be determined by ficed or adusiable rates, The rate of prepayments on underying
morigages will affect the price and wolatility of 2 morigage-related security, and may have the effect of shortening or
exterding the affecthne duration of the security relbtie to what wes armicipated at the tiese of purchase, The fim ey
payrrert of prancipal end interest of certain mortgage-refated securities is guaranteed with the full faith and credit of the
U5 Governmen!, Fools created and guaranieed by nongovernmental Bsuers, incuding government sponsored
corparations, may be supported by variows Torms of insurance or guarantess, but there can be no assurance that private
msurers or guaran tors can meet thar obligations vnder the insurance polcles o guaramtes arrangements,

Many of the risks of imvesting in mortgage-related securities secured by oommesGal mortgage loams reflect the effects of

local ard other eoonomic conditions on real estate markets, the ability of tenams to make lease payeents, and the abdlity
of & property 1o attract and retain lenants.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS [continued )
Far the Year Ended February 28, 2025

FINARNCLAL RISKE MANAGEMENT | continued)

Credil Risk

Credt wisk represents the potemial loss that the Series Trust would ingur & the coumerparties or ssuers of debl seourilies
failed to porform purfsmnt to the terms of their obligations to the Serdies Trust, For euchange-traded contracts, the
exchange acts as the counterparty to specific transactions and, therefore, bears the risk of delivery o and from
counterpartios of spedfic positions. The Series Trust's managoment does not consider that credit risk related to open
clogiediies contracts will hive materid adeerse sffect on the firgnckd cordition of the Series Trual

Ahhough the Manager monitors the Custodian and believes it to be an appropriate astodian, there B no guaranten that
this or any custodian that the Serbes Trust may wse Trom time to time, will rot become insobvent, which could lead to losses
for the Series Trust.

‘While both the LL5, Bankruptey Code @and the Securities imestor Protectson Act of 1970 seek to proftect cusiomer property
in the event of a failure, imsolvency or Eguidation of an institution, there is no cartairty that, in the event of a fadure of an
institution that has custody of Series Trust assets, the Series Trust would not incur losses due to its asats being unavailable
for a peviod of time, ultimately less than full recovery of its assets, or both. Because all of she Serbas Trust's cash iz in
custady with a single irmtitution, such losses ould be significent and could matedially impair She ability of the Series Trust
1o schiewe itd irmvestment objective. The Seres Trust is subject to eredit risk to the extent that this institution may be
urable to fulfill its obligations to repay amounts owed,

Liguidity Mgk
Imeritors should be aware that the value of Units might fall as well a3 rise. investment in the Seriet Trost involes 2 degres
of risk, there can be no sssurance that the Sees Trust's investment abpective will be achieved,

That Series Trust is exposed to Saily repunchase of its Units but management believes that the Series Trust has sufficient
resgurces 1o meet the present and foreseeable needs of its business operations and, if necessary, the liguidity to fund
repurchases and achieve 8 marke! position appropriately reflecting & smaller capital base, This pesition it moritored
continually by managertent bo endue that the Series Trust has the ability to mest it obligations.

Al February 28, 2025, substantially al the irves tment s of the Series Trust were traded in the over-the-coumer market.

Currency Risk

T Sewies Trust holds monetany and non-manelasy 3ssets and incurs monktary and non-monetary lisbilities denominatsd
in currencies ather than USD, the Functional Currency. I i therelone exposed to cumency risk, a8 the value of the assed
srd liabilities denomingted in other currencies {"noenUS0H") will futuate due 1o changes in eachargs rotes, The Sefes
Trust may enter into currency hedging transactions from time to time in order to lmit its exposure 1o ourency risk,

Thaet ireestment Manager monitors the Series Trust's currency exposure on a dally basis,

COMMITIENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

im thee mesrral course of business, the Trustes on behall of the Series Trust may erter inte contracts that contain 2 variety
of representations and warranties and which provide general indemnifications. The general indemnification: apply nof only
to the extent such representations and warranties are unirue but also may cower third parties such as the Series Trust's
hdministeator, Auditor or Imvestment Manager for clainn related 10 the sendoes performed for the Series Trust. The
Trusbie's it Sdmum exposure under any sudh Meangementy is unknown, & exposure only sfites 1o the extent future dlsims
that bave ot yel ocounred are made agaenst the Trusiee. However, besed on experience, the Trusiee espedts the risk of
Rows to be remate,

SUBSECQWENT EVENTS

Management performed 2 subseouent esemts review up to uly 9, 2025 which i the date the financial statements were
available to be issued,

Effectios Mardh 1, 2025 through July 5, 2025, thete wire no subscription in respect of 1PY Monthly Distribation Class and
there were subsoriptions of USD 450 in respect of JPY Semni-Annuall Distribution Clam, thers were subscriptions of LSD
1,312 inrespect of LSS Morthly Distribution Class, there were subscriptions of USD 13,4142 in respect of USO Semi-Annual
Distriudson Cass,
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued )
Far the Year Ended February 28, 2025

SUBSECQUENT EVENTS {conti nued])

Effecteer March 1, 2025 through July 9, 3025, there wene redemptions of USD 30,91 1in respect of 17Y Monthly Distribution
Class angd there were redemphions of USD 505,773 in respect of JBY Semi-apnual Distribution Class, there were no
redemptions in respect of USC Monthly Gistribution: Class, there were redemptions of USD 1,171,087 in respect of LSO
Lomi-Arnual Sistribution (ass.

There were distiibutions of USD 6,686 #n respect of IPY Morthly Distribution Class. There wene dntributiors of
USD 201,985 in respect of JPY Seri-Anmual Distribution Qass. There were distdbutions of USD 7,554 n respect of USD
Morihly Distribution Class, There were cistributions of USD 101,654 in respect of USD Semi-Annual Distribution Class,

There ane no other sgnificant esents 1o report 84 they refate to the Series Trust.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LLABILITIES
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The arcompanying motes are an fntegral part of these finencial ststement s
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DOUBLELNE TOTAL RETURN FUND
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
For the Year Ended February 29, 2024
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The acrom panying notes ane anintegral part of these financlal statements.
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DOUBLELNE TOTAL RETURN FUND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IIN NET ASSETS
For the Year Ended February 29, 2024
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The acrom panying notes ane anintegral part of these financlal statements.
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DOUBLELNE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended February 29, 2024

ORGANIZATION

BoubleLing Total Return Fand (the "Serles Trust™) b a seres tnust of the Nikdka AM Offshore Funds, an open-ended undt
trust established by a supph al trust deed dsted February 8, 2007 [the “Supplementsl Triast Deed™), under the Lws af
the Cayman lslsnds. Nikkao AN Offshare Funds was establishied by o masier trust deed dated October 150 2012 the
“Waster Trust Deed™}, under the lvws af the Cayiran ldands and is lieensed with the Cryman llands Monstary Autharity
puriuant 10 section 4 1Ha) of she BAwrual Funds Ac {2021 Bevsion). The Sedes Trust comimenced operations on Manch 30,
2007,

The Serles Trost's assets are managed on a day-to-day basls by Nikko AN Global Cayman Umited {the “banager™L The
Manager delegates Investment management duties to Nikke Assel Management Co., Lidy (the “Investment banager™].
The levesiment Manager delegates investment managerent duties 10 Doubleline Capital LP, [the “Sub-Inwvestment
Manager™). The adminlstration of the Serkes Trust 5 dedegated to Brown Brothers Hamdman & Co {the *“Custodian® and
“Sub-AdministeatarT), o limbed partnership coganized under thie bws of the S1ate of Mew Yark,

The investinent abjective of the Serbes Trust B 1o sthieve a mid 10 long team 150l return thiaugh income and capital
appreciation, Under pormal crourestances, the Series Trust will iovest over 50% of 5 net assets ino residentlal and
tommerclal mongage-backed securities, sctively allocated betwesn agency and non-agency secarities.

These Investments may indude mortgage-backed seourities of any maturity or type, including thaose gusantesd by, o
secured by collateral thas b guaranteed by, the WAnited States government, its agencies, insramentabities or spanscned
rorparations, and privately lssued mortgage-badked securities rated at the time of purchase Aa3 or higher by Moody's o
AA- ar highes by S&F or of an equivalent miing by any other natizaally recognioed stanktical rating crganizanian {"MRSRO™)
that has been recognieed by the U5 Seourities and Exchange Commision or mnrated secuarities that are determined by the:
Iveestment Manager or s defepates to be of comparable quality, These investments also include, among ethers, LS,
Government mortgags passthiough seowities, collateralized mortgage chligations, multidass pass-through securites,
private mart gage pass-through securiss.

The: Series Toust may ako invest in shor temm ineestments, such as notes lisued by LS, government agenciies, and bonds,
dedst securkies and ather ficed Income instrements lssued by WS, governmental or prvate-sector entities, or other asset-
backed chligations, collateralized bzan chbligaticns, and cbligations of the WS government and Es agencies,
Instrumentalitles and sporsored corporations.

Thes Serkes Trust may invest in bonds of any credit guality, incleding those that are at the time of Imvestment uneated or
rated B+ o lewer by SEP or Bal of lower by Maody's of of an equbalent rating by any athier NRSRO. Bonds and fixed
Income Instruments rated below ivestment grade, or such instruments that are wnrated and delermined by the
Iveestment Manager or ks dedegates to be of comparable qualizy, ane high yiiedd, high risk bonds, commonly kncem as unk
bands”. The Series Trust oy invest op to & third af Bs men asaes in junk bonds, bank losns and assignements that ane el hes
rated below investmant grde or are wrated but determined by the Imestmont Manager or its delegates 10 be of
tamparable quality, and credit default swaps of companies in the high piebd universe,

The Series Trust may Imvest a portian of it net saets ininverse Tloster securities and interest-only and peinclipal-only
s ties,

Under the tenms of the Supplemental Trust Deed and the Master Trst Deed, FistCorbbean International Bark and Trust
Company [Cayman) Limited [the “Trestes™ and the "Admimistracee) is named a3 Trostee of the Series Toust.

The Banager appointed Mitsubishi UF] Morgan Stanley Secwritles Co.. Lid. 1o act as Agemt Company [the “Agent
Campany™] and the Manager appolnted Misubishi UF) Morgan Stanley Securities Cou L1d, and SMBC Trust Bank Lid. 1o sct
a5 Distributors jthe Distrkbuion™) of Units in lapan,

SUMIMARY OF SIGRIFICANT ACCDUNTING POLICIES

The Series Trust s an irvesment company that follows the accounting and reporting guidance in FASE Accownting
Standards Codification S5,

Lise of Exblmotes

The accompanying financial statements have Been prepared in sccordonce with accowent ing princigles generally accepted in
the: United States of America (U5 GAAPTL The preparation of financlal statements in accordance with LS, GAAP requines
the Serbes Trust's manogemnent 1o make edtimates and aswenptions that affect the repored smounts of asses and
lakilities and disclpsures of contingent assets and labiliies at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amcunts of revenees and eapenses during the reporting period. Actual results, inchuding the ultirate smownt resiced
upen the sale of fair walued investeents, could differ from those estimates and such differences may be significant.
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DOUBLELNE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2024

SUBINUAR'Y OF SIGNIFICANT ACCDUNTING POUCIES [continued)

Bosis af dccounting

Security and contractual transactions are recorded om @ tradefrontract-date basks, Interest income b5 recorded on an
effecthe vield bask, net of any applicable withhalding tas Interest expense and other expinses ore fecorded on an atcrusl
basls. Realked gains and losses from security transactions are compuied on the basks of the average cost of the securides
sald or covered, Changes In the wiuation of imestments are recordied In the Statement of Operaticns as unaeallzed
appreclation or depreciation.

Valuetion of investments

Bonds and other debt secadties, inchuding restricted securities [other than shont-term obligations but cluding Bared
Isses) are falr walued at thelr kst le price in the princpal rmarke? In which such securiSes are normally traded, on the
basls af waluations furnished by & pricing service, use of which has been approved by the Investment Managee, of If no sale
hexi poowmed, the bid price on the vahsation date as provided by brokers wha are market makers in the securitics. All debt
seciw hies with Iess than 12 months to maturity date, in princlple shall ke fabr waloed wing an amortized cost efected by an
effective yield sccumulatedfamartization methed to thelr matarity date with adjuitments based on comparisan with
market prices as required,

In accordance with the authoritative guidance on fair value measurements and disclosures under WS, GAAP, the Series
Trust discleses the fair value of its innestments in a hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation fechniques uied o
measre the far value, The hierarchy ghves the highess prinety 1o valuations based upon umadjuited quoted prices in ative
markets for [dentical msets or Eabllkies {Level 1 messorement) and the lowesst priodty o weluationds based upan
unchsercable inputs that are significant 12 the valwatize [Level 3 reeasurements), Th gudance establihes thaee kb of
the: fair sabue hdevarchy as follows:

& Level 1 - Inputs that reflect unedjissted quated prices in octive maskets far identical invesireents that the Series
Trust has th ability 10 arcess 21 the measremen? date;

& Level 2 - lnputs ather than quated prices that are dgnificant and obseresble for the asset o liabiley either
directly or indirectly, including inputs in markets that are nat considened 1o be azthe;

®  Level 3 = Inputs that are significant and uncksenvable,

Ingins are used i applying the varksss wala tion techaiques and broadly refer 1o the assumpticns that market panicipants
wse- to make valuation decslons, iInduding asswmptions about risk. Inputs may Inclu de price infonration, specific and broad
credil data, liguidity statlstics, and other facters, A financial instnament’s kevel within the fair valae hisrarchy b based upon
the lowest level of any Input that s snificant to the falr value mesrement. Howewer, the determination of what
tanstitines “obiervable” requires significant judpment by the levestrment Managed. The lnvesament Manager considers
chssrvakle data to be markes data which & readily aeailable, regularly disteibuned or updated, reliable and veriflable, not
praprietary, and provided by independent sources that are acthely invalved in the refevant market. The categartzation af a
financial instrament within the hierarchy is based upon the pricing transparency of the instrament and does no 1 necessarnily
worrespand to the Ineestment Manager™s peroebeed bk of that instrument.

Investments whase values are Based on the quoted market prices in active maskets, snd therefore classified within Level 1,
wiaild inchude actheely aded equities, and certain LS, government and sovereign cbligations, The lrvesment Manager
wrnld not adjust the quoted price for such instrum ents, even in sluations whers the Sevies Trust held a bige position and
a sale could ressonablly impact the quated price,

Inveestments that trade in markets that are not consldered 1o be active, but ane valued based on quoted market prices,
thealer guistations of altermathee pridng sowces supported by obssrvables Inpues are dlassilied within Level 2. These Include
Invesitment-grade debil securities, short teom Investrrents and foraerd forelgn currency exchange contracts and may alio
Include certaln ssiet-badkeed wscoritles and collsteralied martgage obligations. ds Lesel 2 innsstrments indude posktions
that are ot traded in acthee markets andfor are subject o ransfer restrictions, valuations may ke adjusted 1o reflect
iMliquiciry anciar non-ransferatilivg, which are genesally based on available market infomaticn,

Investments classified within Level 3 hawve signdficant unobdervable npes, a5 they would frade infrequently. Level 3

Instiuments weould include certain siset-backed securites and callateralived mengage obligations As observable prices are
nat available for those seouriies, thie Sekes Trust wowld use valation technques (o dedboe the faie value,
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DOUBLELNE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2024

SUMINIAR'Y OF SIGNIFICANT ACCDUNTING POUCIES [continued)

Valuation af Investments feontingid)
The Ingeuts ar methad ology wied for vahsing seourties ane not recesserly an indicatlon of the dsk assodated with Investing
i thase setuitios.

The folzwing 1ahile presents the fnanclal instrements camed on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities by captian snd by
level withén the valuation hierarchy as of Febmary 29, 2024, Forther classifications of the financial Instruments are
presented bn the Portfallo of Investments,

FairWalun at
Asels o8 Falr Valun Levell Lmwel Ll § Enbreary % 3934
Fised Income Securities Ui e} - =D T Y ] Ll ] - usn 5 285 05
Farward Farsgn Currgncy
Exchiege Cortracty = 238,092 - 13,031
Tiksl s = [TE 57T [IET] - 5D 57.373.145
FafrVelue at
Linbiiins an Fulr Valas Lovrsdl 1 Lirvtl 2 Liowe 3 il naainy 19, B4
Formard Forsgn Currency
Eur; Conlsdy L1E ] = L] 5.5 L1i2 1) = D (50
—
T — T — N —

Cruring the year erded February 29, 2024, there were no ransfers in of ot of Level 3. The Series Trust's policy 1s 1o
dieterming bevelling and assew all transfers a5 at a year end date.

Fowelgn Corrency Tronslotan

Asaztd and Babllldes held In curtence s othes than Undted States Dollar {*UED" o the *Functienal Cufrency™] aie Fansbited
o the Functional Currency at the rate of pachange prevaling a1 the financial satement date, Income and eepenses are
tranalated a1 the rate of eschenge prevailing at the date on which the hcome or experse B incurred. Realiced and
ueirealised gains and losses arlsing on foreign ourrency Wwansactions are Incheded In the Statement of Operaticns in the
periad in which they ccour.

The Seelies Teust does ot kolate that porticn of the results of aperations resuling from changes. in forsipn echange rates
on vestments from the luctuations arking from changes In market prices of secoritis held, Soch fluctuations are
Incheded with the: nert realized and unrealined gain or loss from imestments.

Income Toxes

Under the cument lrws of the Cayman lands, there are na incomes. withhalding, cophial gains or other taxes payable by
the Sewies Trust, In certain judsdictbons ather than the Coyman Blands, fooclen tases may be withheld at source on
divid=nds and Inter et recstved by the Serles Trust. Capltal galms derived by the Serles Trust in such jurlsdictions penerally
will b= exempt from forelgn Income or whhhalding taxss a2 source. The Series Trust Intends to conduct Its affaies such that
It will g b subjecy fo income tas in any purlsdiction, As a resull, no provision Ter incame tases has been made in the
financisl statements Unitholders may be taced on thelr proportionate share of the Sees Trost's tax bask income based
o their indhddusd circumstantes,

The Series Trast follows the authoritative guddance ca sccounting for and disclesure of uRtertalnty in 1ax posiions
[Financiad Accounting Standards Board [*FASE®) - Accounting Standards Codification 740), which requires the Managss to
determinge whether a tax postion of the Sedes Toust b more likely than not to be sustained upon smination by the
applicable tading awthority, including resclution of any refated appeaks or Btigation processes, baded on the technical
reerits of the position. For tas podtions meeting the more Beely than not thredheld, the tax beaedit recognized In the
financial staterments 5 reduced by the largest benefit that kas a greater than fifty pencent likelihood of belng reallzed upan
ubtimate seitlemens with the relevant taxing authcaity, The Manager has determined that there is minimal oo na effect on
the financial statements being under this anhesitathe guidance,

Eomvand Fareign Corrency Exchoage Contracts
The Sexdes Trust may enter into forward forelgn currency exchange condracts to hedge agalrsd foregn curmren oy sachenge
rate risks on oll of & portion of non-UPSD-denaminsted invesiments o for efficent pontfolio mansgement purpoies. When
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DOUBLELNE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2024

SUBINULR'Y OF SIGNIFICANT ACCDUNTING POUCIES [continued)

Formward Fonelgne Currency Exchonge Controcts [continued)

entering into a forward foretgn cumrency exchange contract, the Series Trust agrees 10 recehe or deliver a fied quanthy of
fareign currency for an agresd-upon price an an agreed future date, Thess contracts ane valued daily, snd the Series Trus™s
net equity theren, representing uneealeed appreciationf{depreciation) on the contracts as measured by the difference
bt thete farwiard foreign currency eschange rates ot the dates of entry into the contracts and the forward rates af the
regarting date, |5 induded in the S1aement of Assets and Uabilizies, Reallzed and unrealized gaims and losses are included
In the Statement of Gperations.

These instruments Ineohe marker risk, oredin risk, or both Mnds of risks, in escess of the amount recognited in the
Statement of Assets and Labilitles, Risks arke from the posslble inability of cowsnterparties to meet the terms of their
caniracts and fram (eovernent i cusrency and secunities values and interest rates, In addition 1o the Class kel hedging,
the: Serles Trust had met realieed gain of S0 1,223 on & forward forelgn comrency eschange contracts during the year with
an average notlcnal of USD 82,632 and an average tenm to matarity of 3 days. The Seres Trust also had net reallzed loss of
LED $40.549 on 36 farward forelgn currency exchange contracts held a1 the Y Monthly Distribation Class Hedged level
during the year with an average national of USD 1,761,252 and an sverage teom o maturity of 30 days, The Seres Trust
alsa had meallzed lass of USD 7,000,825 on 41 forasid 'urdph wurrency eachange conlratts held at the JPY Sedni-Annns]
Distriturntion Class Hedged leved during the year with an average natlonal of USE 25011563 and an average tam to
mutuiny of 28 days.

While all or substantially all of the assets of the Seves Trust may be hedd In U5, Dallars, & s Intended for the Serles Trust to
enter inta hedging arvangements for the benedit of JFY Manthly Distribution Class Dalts and JFY Seeni-Annual Dswilinion
Class Lhnlts, which ore denominated in Yen, These svangerents will be to hedge spsinst adverse movements of the
wurrency of dencmination of the ivestments In the Series Trust redathoy to Yen Any profits, gains, loses, oosts, income
and expendiuce ssocdated withsuch hedging anrsngements will be borne by each class,

For the year ended February 20, 2024, the national exposure an the 1PY Monthly Ditributicn Class Units and IPY Semi-
Annual Distribution Clags Units forward oemency exchange consracts approadmated the serage net assets for each dass
being net bang IPY and short USD. Open contiacts at year end are disdodsd In the Portfolle of Wvestments.

Cash and Fareign Currency
Carsh aned foreign currency comprises ol currency held with the Custodian, and averndght and oiber shom term placements
‘with other financial Inssisutions,

UNITS

The: next assets of the Sevies Trust are divided into JPY Monthby isribution Class Units, IPF Serd-Annual Distribution Olass
Units, LED Manthly Dissribntion Clss Unlts and USDr Semicannual DEtribatian Cless Unlts, The Units are dencminated In
United States Dolar and lapanese Yen, I Monthly Distitution Class Units, #7 Semi-Anneal Bistribution Class Undts, USD
Ilanthly Hstribation Class Wnits and USD Semi-Annual Distribution Cless Units are aesilsble to an digible vestor who b5
nnvy pREsan, corporatice of entity which is not ([ a citlzen or resddent of the 1.5, a partnership organized of existing in the
W%, or any carparation, trust or other entity organdzed under the baows of or edsting in the US; (I person or entity resident
or damiciled in the Cayman lshands (eocheding any object of a chariable st o power or an exerepied o non-resident
Cayman Idands companyl; () unable to subscribe for or kold Units without viclsting applicable laws, or (b 3 csstodian,
nammines, of thustee for any person, compodation or entty described in 1) to (K] sbewe.

The: Banager may determine to e one of more dasses of Units of the Serles Trust withowt prioe natice 10 or written
tondent of the Unithaliers.

Al af the net sseets sitribotabls o FY Monthly Disribution Class Unies, IPY Seml-dnnual DEtribution Class nits (e,

LSO Monthly Distribation Cliss Unlts and USD Semi-Annual Distribution Class Undts, are held by two nomines acccunt
Lnhhokiers,
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WITS {eomtinued |

IFY Mcsthiy 1PY Sami-Annusl LISEy bl colthi by B D Semi-Annuil
Ealarce o Febnury 26, 1033 B 1997664 WSO SLOGLIGT USD  LIERESS WD 8,553
Sastririphisr duricg the e 1,53 Lans ok 387 larsal
Fedempbicr during the yeaw [E3a 308 [E02.539) | 245253 12438
Okt ot 141,310 [aar g (27 TR [HFH
Mot |deoreaepfinoreace I ek avse ks
resulting from operatons (A6 [Gn5s 18u sk 2

user S4,67110%
1LE LAY

12, 155,155]
(5107}

frages 5 E1TETR

Pt dgpeti gt Februdey 39, 2034

AGD GRTag3e.  ASD3AORANRE 5D 2NTALL. ASD ISTLND.  USD SRISROR

Mamberr of Linity in issue ot

Frbruany 38, 2003 53,380 FIT AR 183134 0, 552 149,710
Wi sl ot g Hhhas e 3331 54,850 120 071,283 0,134
Uity rdcee med during e yaar 1341 11L.936) (29295) [ar418) £171,461)
Peurnbier ol LIndy (a it sus o

February 39, 2004 A1308 TE0340 114,440 LIrase LHAATY

feel Aniit Valos per Unit o

Februaey 10, 024 s a700 uso S8 WD B1F WSD B2
Swhscriptions for Units

Y Konthiy Distribution Class Units and #7 Sembannual Distribution Class Units were ficst bsued at on initis] fsswee price
of AP 100000 ped Uit The einimur iniisd subseripnion for (Y Meathly Distribation Class Units and 1Y Sedni-Annisl
DHstriburtion Class Lnls per subsoriber s 1 Unk or mare, and In multiples of 1 Undts theneafter.

LD Monthly Dastribution Class Unbs and USD SembAnnual Distributicn Class Undts were first lsued 21 an initinl sue price
of LBD 1000 per Unidt The minimum initlal subseription for USD Manthly Distribution Class Units and USD Seeni-Anaasl
Distribunian Class Unins per subscriber is 10 Undts or more, and in mabigles of 1 Unlt thereatter,

The: Manager may wabve or change the minkmum initial and addinional sulbscription amounts set forth above in Its sole

discretion from time to time.

Linlft Redemptlons

The Series Trust recogrizes redemptions i sccordonce with the anheriative guidance en distinguishing Rabilites from
equity, Redemptions, whether expressed as Unlted 5%a2es Dollar, Japanese ¥en or Undts, ane recognized as Rabilitles when
each af the Japsnese Yen and United S1a1e Dallar Linlt amounts requested In the redemptisn notice becames fxed, which
generalty may coour etther at the time of the recedps of the notier, or on the last day of a flscal year, depending on the
ntuire of the request. As a result, redemptions paid after the end of the year, but based upon year end net assets are
reflected as redemptizns payable at Febroary 29, 2024, There were USD 8,522 of redomptions payable for Japanese Yen
Units and USD 15,346 of redermptions payable for United States Dollar Units as ot Febrosry 29, 2004 included as Payshle

far Units redesimed in the Staterrent of Assets and Liakdlies,

Repurchose of Units

Units may be repurchased at the option of Unithalders cn each Repurchase Day (each business day, commencing on Mairch
30, 2017, or such other day or days as the Manager may from time to time determine Inoresped of the Serles Trust akioa

[“Vaksation Bay"J).

Unithalders wishing to have Units repuschased must send a completed Repurchase Natice 1o the Distribwtors so a5 tobe
recetved by the Distributors na later than 300 g, (Tokyo tene) on the relevant Repurchase Day, The Ditribuzars il
send the completed Repurchase Notices 19 the Sub-Adminisirator by na later than 5:00 pum, [Tokyo dme) on the relevant
Repurchase Day of by such ather time as the Sub-Admindstrator may b any particular case detenrine.,

If the refewant Feparchase Notice |5 not received by the Sub-Adminlstrator by the relevant time, the Repurchose Natios will
ke held oved wntl the pen dollowing Repurchase Day after the Repurchase Notice §s received and Units will then be

redeemed at the relevant repurchase price applicable on that Repurchase Doy,

& Repurchase Motice, once gheen, §s imevocable.
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DOUBLELNE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2024

UMITS (continued)

Compulsary Redemption

In the ewent that the Trustes or the Manager shall determing that any Unics of any dass of a Serles Trus are being held by
or for the benefit of a person wha & ot on Eligible Investor Tor such Series Trust or that such halding weuld caese the
Trust or the Sevies Trust to be required 10 reglsten, be subject to tax or violate the Laws of any jurisdictizn, or if the Trustee
or the Manager has reason fo doubt the kegitimacy of the source of menles used 1o fund the subscription o purchase of
such Units, or far whatever reason fwhich may nat be disclosed by the Trustes o the Manager 1o Unlthaldes s) that the
Trustes or the Manager considers appropriate at its absclute discretion having regard 1o the interesis of the Unithalders of
the relevant Class or the Unisholders of the Sedes Trust as a whale, then the Banager, after consultationwith the Trustes,
may direct the holder thereof to sell such Unlts withim 10 days and provide to the Trustes and the Manager evidenoe of
such sabe, failing which the Manager may redeem suth Units,

Terménotion of the Serles Trost

Upon termination, the Manages will realize a8l the ssses of the Series Trust, and alter payirg cut of relaining adequate
pravisicn for all labllkles properdy payable and retaining provision for the osts of the termination, the Trustee shall
distribute the proceeds of that realization 1o the Unitholders propanionately to thelr respective interests in the Serles
Trust as af the date of terrrimation of the Serles Trust,

Duseributions fo Uinithalders
The Manager may, In Bz sol= discretion, declsre distribotions and na guarantes &k made that these will takes place.
Bstribution will be declared on each Buiiness Doy immediately prior 0 the Ex-Dlstribution Date for I and UED
[Hsiriburtkon Class Undts or such other date or dates as the Manager may from time to ime determine in respect of the
Sefies Trpst ["Distribution Record Date] and cakeelated on the fifieenh (15ch} day of each manath for Meanthly Disiinian
Chass Unlts and the fifteenth {15th] day of March and September of each year for Semi-Annual Blstribution Class Undis (F
suth day |5 not o Business Day, then on the Tollowing Business Day), of such ather date or dates in each menth e the
Manages may from time 1o time determine in respect of the Series Taest Bc-Disdbuticn Date). Dstriution Pericd i a
perhiod cammending from the calendar day fallowing the preceding Distribution Record Date and ending on and including
the Mstwitugtion Record Date, The ditributions will be paid on the relevant Distributian Payment Date, provded that such
amount [H any} declaned with respect to the relevant Class of Units o respect of the applicable Distribtion Period shall
only ke paid cut of the Seres Trust's net income, realized and unrealized capital gains and any distributable funds of the
Serles Trust attributable to such Class of Uinits as determined by the b4

L

The decliration of distributions to Unkholders reduces the Class Level Nst Asset Walue per Unlt without any corresponding
change In the number of (ass Leved Units per Unithalder. This resulbs in @ Unitholder's overall investment in the Series
Trust being reduced. In addition, any distibutians during 8 Distributicn Period which ane n excess of the Segbes Toust's net
Increase Innet assets resuking from operations results ina portion of the distribwtion being retuen of capitall

The amcunt of dissrbusions, if any, will be detesmined by the Manager i its sole discretion, and no representation ar
puarsnies i mads that a distribution will be made in fespect of sach or any Distribution Perlod,

Copolization

The Met Asset Value per Unit & caloulated for each Dealing Day [each Valuxion Day, or suth ciher day or days as the
Klamager may fram thme to Sime detemine in respect of the Serdes Trust), by dividing the difference inovalue between the
Series Trust's assets and labilivies (hcleding acorued fees and espenses of the Serles Toust) By the number of Units
outstanding.

The Teust Deed stipulates that the number af Units 1o be Bsued in the Series Trst shall be wnlimized o the Manager dhalll
determing and shall be withous par vales.

DEAIVATIVE FINAMCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Arcounting Standard Codification {ASC] 815-10-50 r equires disdosures about der kathes instruments and hedglng acthities.
It requires that the Series Trust dischose: a) how and why an entity uses derivatios instrurnents, b} how derieatios
Instruments and related Bedged Rems are accounted Tor and of how derbvatbee instroments and related hedged items
affest o emity's linarial positicn, financial perfonmance aed cash lows,

The Series Trest Wransacts fonward defivative instruments prirarily for hedging punposes with each instrifment’s primany

risk exposure befng forsign eschange rik The forwand fureign currency exchange contracts beld by the Series Trist donot
qualify as hidges for acoounting purpeses under the requirements of ASC 515,
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DOUBLELNE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2024

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS [continued]

The fair value of these derarhe nstruments is induded in the Satement of Assets snd Liabilivies with changes in fair
vl reflected as realized gins/losses) ar net change in unrealized appreciationf{de preclation) on dervathes within the
Statement af Operations (Hote2).

Thes Seves Trust may snfet into an Intemational Swvaps and Derbvative Associstion, Inc. Master Agreement (1508 Master
agreement™} with its counterparties in order 1o mitigate counferparty risk The BDA Master Agreement b typlcally
negatiatied by thie Series Trist and its counterpanies, cantaining the bilaterad terms and conditions for all subseqieent
devkeative transactions. The 1504 Master Agreement allows for the netting of all amounts owed to or dwe from
counterparty inte a single et payment if & oredi evens o default should oocu,

The: Series Toust has elected 1o nat affser fair value recebables and payables for dedvntive contracts on the face of the
Statement of Asets and Linbilles.

At Febouary 29, 2024 the Series Trust had enfered dnfo the follpwing derlvathe assets by counterparty ned of amownts
mvailable for offaet under a Moster Netting Agreement ["MNA") and net af any collateral recebed by the Serbes Trust:

Derivative Ak Derivathes Non-cash Cash Bk Amowst of
Countergarty Subject to 3 WA Available for Difsel G Reoebed Colatenl Remived  Davivathos Assaks!
Erowe Brothers Haerinan 800, USD 1 uso [25 USD - UsD - s -
CHTIFE pi i k] [ehEE]] = = AN
Total ] FT T {550 LBD - o — L8O L]

At February 29, 2024 the Series Trust hod enteded inta thie follewing desbative Babilides by counterpary net af amcunts
ervailakbe for offset under o RNA and net of any collaters] pledged by the Setie Toust:

el Amouniol

Dervativn Lishilties  Owrivithoe Non-cid Cash Drrivative
Countenpaity Subsjesrt te o b Avalibls foe Difust Collatnral Pladgnd  Collatersl Pledgad Liakd it
Erowm Broteess Heermnan &0o0, USD 3 uUsh [FARE: ) - LS = LS 1
CITTHE pori] S E} = = r
Total [ 508 LD [EE LT - — LD i
B g e il b roed am ount recealdafpay s Bie om the counter party @ Uhe avert of delast
At Febnuary 29, 3004 the Serles Trust had entered into the following derhvatiees:
Dl by Statemant Statement
Mt Arcomnted for i of Assets and of Asset and
H il g Bt rass 015 LigkiBtias Location Fair Valus Li;hlhhil.mlh (Farir 'l
Forwirdloreign cerency - Unee il ped spprecistion Uinre gliped chegreci sthan
ki g conty scky on lgrwird forsgn on forward forgign
[Currency ] CuTBncy eacharge LD 233091 currency sachungs [ {5,596}

onk ack eardracty

The eHect of derhathe Instrureents on the: Statement of Operations for the year snded Febnaary 29, 1024:

Changein Usrealired

Locatfon of Koalimed Approdation or
Doy stives Hot Ascountad Gaimor jLow] Gainor fuow) [Doprodylica) ca
Ted b5 Hiedghag Iirm ants O Dbt e o D rvatives i risvativies
okt realleediosses on forwardionesgn
Fermard foreigneurrency ounrarcy sxchargs conbracts
exchange contrachy chang Inunrealined apered stion on forwand
{Currery Kisk fareign currency eachangs comracts usg [FAALISY  USD TRLHL

WUMNAGIMENT FEES

The Mansger recebees, o0t of the sssets of the Series Trast, a management fee of & total up to 06% per snnum (0U03%
per annum In respect of fee for the Manages, 0.25% per annum of the Net Asset Value up 1o USD 400 millicn and G.21%
pet anmem af the Net Aviet Value over LBD 400 million in respect of fee fon the nvestment Manager, and 0.40% per
annm af the Met Asset Valope up to USD 400 million and 0,355 per annum of the Met Asse Value over USD 400 milion in
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DOUBLELUNE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2024

UM AGEMENT FEES (comtinued]

respect of fee for the Sub-lmestment Manager] of the Net Adset Value scoreed on, snd caloulated as ay, each Valustion
[ray and payable manthly in arrears. Inaddition, the Manager alss reimburses, cut of the assets of the Series Toust, for any
expenies incurred by [in the proper perfoomance of By powers and dikess as permired under the Master Trust Deed
During the year ended February 29, 7024, the Manager eamned fees of USD 384,799, of which USD 28,653 ts sl
out gtanding 25 of February 29, 2024,

Thes Manager pays the fees of the Investment Manager out of its fees. The nvestment Manager Is responsible for paving
the fees of the Subdnvesiment Manager and sy of the Investment Managess delegates of other ganies appainied by the
Investment kanager to perfonm its functions in respect of thie Serbes Trost.

CUSTOMMAN AND SLID-ADNINISTRATOR'S FEES

The Custedian snd Sub-Adremistrator receives o oustody fee caliulated snd pald mehthly Based on towl assets and
trancactian velume,

The Custodian and Sub-Administratar eecebess, out of the assets of the Sedies Trest. an adminkstration fee [including
tranafer agent fee) caltulated based on the Met Asset Value a5 at each Valuation Duay at the Tollkwing annwal rate:

- LT % wp 1o {and inchading) WSO 250 rillicn;

- 0.08% up to {and Indluding) US0 SO0 milion;

- LG5 % aver USD 500 millicn,

Such admindsration fee is payable moathly In smears, and subject to the minlmumn amsneal fee of USD 60000 The
Cusiodian and Sub-Adminbtrator abo recebves, out of the assets of the Serles Trust, fees for comency adminkstration and
execiflicn serdees ot the rote of 0.05% per annwem of the Net Asser Value of the relevant Unit Class, subject to the
mindmiam annual fee of USD 55,000 In addiion, the Custadian and Sub- Admindstrator receles custorrany salekeeping foes
and trandaction charges. All ow-of-packet experdes af the Custodisn and Sub-Administrator are borne by the Sedss Trust.
During the year ended Felruary 29, 2024, the Custodian and Sulb-Administrater ramed fees of USD 73310, of which USD
12,437 |s s1ill autstanding as of Febroang 29, 2024,

TRLUSTEE FEES

The Trsstee recedes, ot of the sssets of the Series Trust, o combined fee at the rate of ROLS% per annum of the Net
Asaet Value accnaed on, and cakulated as at each Valuation Bay and payable guartedy In arrears, subject to a minimem
annual fer of USE 15,000, During the year ended Februany 23, 2034, the Tostee ramed fees of USD 15,043, of which USD
TA7E ks sl putstanding as of Felbruary 79, 2004,

AGENT COMPANY'S FEES

The: Agent Company receives, out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee at the e of 0.02% per annum of the Net Asset
Walue acoued on, and caloulbvied a5 at, each Valuation Day and payable quanierly in arrears, Duting the year ended
Febauary 28, 2024, the Agent Company earned fees of USD 11,318, of which USD 1921 Is 518l curstanding as of Febraary
29, Fia,

DETRIBUTOR'S FEES

The Distribunars recebve, out of the sssets of the Series Trust, a fee at the rate of 0.60% per anfum af the Net Asset Value
pecoued on, and caloulated o ot each Valustian Day snd payable quariedly in sorears. During the yeor ended Febauary 29,
2024, the Distributors earmed fees of USD 339518, of which USD 56,655 ks still cutstanding as of February 19, 2024,

OTHLR FELS AND EXPENSDS

The costs and expenses Im connection with the establishmen? of the Serfes Trust and the offering of the Units, together
with the establishment of the Trust, incheding the costs amd espenses of prepaning amd printing any prospectus of
explamatory brochures required, were estimated at launch o amount 1o spprodmately WSO 140,00¢. Such oosts and
expenies will be amonked within the first five (5] financial years of the Series Toust undess the Trustes deciles that same
oihier method shall be applied. The Admbnistrator recelves USD 1,500 per annem for FATCA / GRS compllance services.

132/211



11

EDINETOOOO

OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2024

FINAMCIAL RISK MAMAGEMENT

The Seebes Trust's activities expose I 1o 8 wasiety of financial rsks: marker bk nchiding price risk, interes rate risk, and
wurrempy ikl omedis risk and liquidity risk,

Mfarker Risk
All investments present a risk of loss of coapital. The Investiment Manager modenstes this risk through a careful selection of
s ke and other financial instruments,

The Seviies Trisst's Investment managemment pro<ess is described in Nete 1 The primary determinant of the Sebes Trest's
abifity 1o mest [tz objectie of mid 1o long term capital appreciation while eaming Income & dependent on the
performance of the investreent in the residential and coemenerclal mongage-backed securities, The Series Trust's coerall
market pasitions are monltored on a dally basls by the Serles Trust's iovestment Manager.

The vakes of the Series Trast's investments is affected by o narber of factors, incleding but mat liemited 1o, changes in the
wider economy, financial amd currency markets, foreign currency eichange rates. Interest ate movements and onedit
rotings of debt issuers The Series Trust may enter Inta forward forelgn currency exchange contracts which 1o varying
degre-os represent 3 market risk in pacess of the amount reflected on the Serles Trust's Statement of Assets and Liabilides.
The: naatianal amount of the contract represents the extent of the Series Trusts participation in these financial instruments.
Ielanket risks assodated with axch contracts arke due to the possible movements in forelgn curency eachange rates
underiing thise insiraments,

Gaher market and crediz fisks include the pessibillity that there may be an illiguid marbet for the conteacts, that the change
In the valee of the contract may nat directly comelate with changes In the wlue of the underhying currencies or that the
tount eqparty 1o a forward contract defaalts an s abiigadon 1o perfoem under the terms of the contract, The Series Trust's
exposure to loss dur o countenparty non-performance on open futures, forward foreign currency exchange, swap and
options contrss ks limited to the unreakied sppredintion inherent in such financal instrurments which are recognined in
the Statement of Assets and Liabilitkes.

Interest Rate Ridk

The Serles Trust's exposure to changes ininterest rates relates primardly 10 the Serfes Trust"s investrenas in debit seourizles
condracts, Interest rase Tluctuations may alio atfect the Tair value and pricing of destvanive instnuments purchased o sold
short by the Serdes Trust. The Inestment Manager continuoosly monhors the Serles Trust's exposre fo interest rate ik
and the Serles Trust's overall Interest senalthvity on a regular basts.

Many financial instrurments used o flesting rate based on the London Interbank Offered Rate [LIBOR"), the offered rate ot
which major intemational banks can obiakn wholesale, unsetured funding. LIBOR was a significant facior in determining
the Sedien Trust's payement obligations whder o deivative irvesiment, the cost of financieg 1o the Series Trust o an
Invvestment’s valoe or return o the Series Trunt, and was used in other ways that affected the Serles Trust's Investment
performance. The Unlted Kingdam's Financlal Condwct Authority phased cut of U0 Although many LIBOR rates wene
phased cut by the end of 2021, a selection of widely wsed USD UBOR rates continued 1o be published through June 2023 in
order 1o asshst with the tronsition. The Sedies Trost was exposed to financial instruments tied to UBOR to determine
payment chligations, financing teems, hedging steategies of investreent valee The transition process away from LIBOR and
any incneased wolatility and | liquidity in markets for, and redouced efectivensss of new hedges placed againat, indtrements
whease terms previcusly inthaded LIBDR were nat material 1o the Series Truse

disiet-bocked scunitie fovestment Rk

Asset-backed securithes Investreent have the risk that barrowers may default on the abligations that undedis the aset-
backed security and that, during periods of falling Intevest rates, asset-backed sequrities may be called or prepald, which
may fesult inothe Serles Trust having 1o reinvest proceeds in ather Investments at a lower Interest rate, snd the ridk tha
the: irepadrmant of the walae of the collateral enderlyving a security inowhich the Series Trst Ireests (doe, for example, to
nan-paymnent of oo ) will result inoa reduction in the value of the security.

Concentrotion Risk

The Series Trust may irvest substantisly in bonds bsued by WS, apencies i sccordance with its principal investment
strategies. Becawse such secaritles are bswed by a limhed number of govermment agencles, any actual or potendlal
desrupion 1o those apencies could present a ridk 1o the Series Trust Fannle Mae and Freddie Mac, which are ather
government-spansoned suers of mortgage-back securizles similar to those guaranteed by Ginnle Mae, suffered such a
disruption n the morgape crisls af 2007 - 2008 snd were placid under federal conservatorhip of that time, Cinnle Mae
securhies, undikr those of Fannie Mae and Freddie ac, are backed by the full faith and credis of the .5, government and
are subject 1o the risks of LS. gavernment secwrities. Similar 1o other Bseers, changes 19 the financial condition of redit
rating of the L5, government may cause the value of the Series Trust's ssposure to U5, agencies seourtties 1o declins,
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2024

FINAMECIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [continued)

Martgoge-bocked feconitias Bk

Mortgage-backed securlties represent interests in “poohk® of mortgages and are subject to credht, Intemest rate,
prepayment and ectension fisk. Momgage-backed securities react differently to changes in interest rates than ether bonds
and the pricey of mongage-backed secuhies may reflect adverse rconcemic and markst condttions. Small maovements in
Interest rates {both increases and decreases) may quickly and significantly reduce the alue of certain mengage -backed
securhies. Default or bankruptoy of a counterpany to a to-be-announcied transaction would expose the Seris Tiust 1o
passible loss

Iefortgogereiotedond Other Asset-8ooked Securities R

The Seres Trust may Invest In mortgage-related and other asset-backed seourities that directly or Indirectly represent a
participatian in, of are secured by and payable from, loams on real property, Mongage-related seourities are created froom
pock of resldential or commerclal mortgage koans, including mortgoge bans made by savings and loan instiutions,
moatgages bankers, commercial banks and others, Thess securlties provide 2 monthly payment which conskets of bath
Imerest and principal. Interest may be detesmined by fioed or adjustakle rates. The rate of prepayments an whderlying
morigages will affect the price and volstilty of a mongage-related secueity. and may have the effect of shorendng or
extending the efective duration of the security relathve to what was anticlpsted at the time of purchase. The timely
paypment af principal and knterest of certain mortgage-refated securities ls guarantesd with the full falth and credit af the
Ui Gowernment. Pook created and guesanteed by non-govermmental bsseers, induding  government -sponsored
carparaticns, may be supponed by variows Torms of insurance or guarantess, but there can be no assurance that private
Insuress or guarantors can meet thelr chligations under the | e policles or g tee anrangements. Many of the
risks of invvesting in morgage-related seourtles secured by cormmerciz] mongape loans reflect the effects of local and
caher ecomoanic conditizas on real estate markets, the abiity of tenams to make lease payments, and the ability of a
properiy o attract and refaln tenands.

Craelif Risk

Credit sk represents the potential loss that the Sesies Trust wowld incur if the countenpanties or lssuers of debit seourities
falled to perform pursuant 1o the terms af thelr obligations o the Sedes Trust Far eschange-traded contracts, the
exchangs acts as the counterparty 10 spectiic transactions and, therefore, bears the sk of delbeery 1o and from
conmnterparties of specfic posklons. The Seriss Trust's management daes nat consider that oredht rlik relyted to open
derivative conracts will have materls] athverse effect on the financial conditien af the Sevies Trast,

Althaugh the Manager monbiors the Custodian and believes it 1o be an appregriate custodian, there s no guarantee than
this or any custodian that she Series Trust may use from time to time, will nat become insobent, which could lead to losses
for thes Saries Trast,

while both the U5, Bankrupicy Code and the Securlties Investor Protection Act of 1970 serk (o protect cusiomer property
Inthe event af o fallure, inschvency or Bquidation of aninstitation, there B o cenainty that, in the svent of a falkire of an
Instituticn that has custody of Serkes Trust assets, the Series Trust would not incur losses due 1o 85 assets being unavadlzble
for a period of time, ubimately less than il recavery of 95 assets, or bathe Becawse Al af the Seres Trust's cash b In
wustody with a dingle instiution, such kssses could be dgnificant and could materlally impair the ability of the Series Trest
e ahieve Es invesiment chjecthe, The Serdes Trst B sulbject to credit risk 1o thee extent that this instinnizn may be
umable 1o fulflll ks obligations to repay amounts cwed.

biguitity Risk
Investors should be aware that the valie of Undts might Tall a5 wel a5 fise. Investment in thie Series Trust imalves & degree
of risk, there can be no assurance that the Serles Trust's imeestment objecthve will be achieved,

The: Series Trust b exposed to dally repuechiase of fis Units but management belises that the Seres Trust has sufliclent
rescimces to meet the present and foreses able needs of its business operations and, I necessary, the Bquidity 1o fund
repurchases and achieve @ marke1 pasiton appropriately reflecting a smaller capital base, This position i menltcred
tontinually by management 1o ensure that the Sevies Trust b the abllity 10 meet itz abligations.

At February 34, 2039, substantally all the vestments of the Series Trost were traded in the over-the-counter market.

Carrency Risk

The Seeies Toust holds imonetary and hon-emanelary avsets ond inours monetany and non-monetary ek inies denominsted
in currencies ather tham USD, the Functianad Curreney. 1 Bs therefore expased 1o currency fd, as the valiss of the assets
and liabilitkes denaminated in other cuerencies {(Snon-USD*) will fluctuste dwe to changes in eschange rates The Series
Trust may enter info currency hedging transactions fram teme 1o time in order 1o limit ts exposure o cufrency rik, The
Inveestm et Manager monitors the Serfes Trust's comency sxposune on a daily basls.
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DOUBLELINE TOTAL RETURN FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
For the Year Ended February 29, 2024

COMMITRIENTS AND COMNTINGEMNCIES

In the narmal course of budness, the Trustee on behal! of the Series Trust may ented into contracts that conain a variety
of reprsentations and warranties and which provide general indemnifications, The general indemnPlcations apply nat andy
ot the ewtent siuch repredentations and warranties are aniree but alss may cover third parties such as the Sarfes Trusts
Adminktrator, Auditor or Investment Manager for daims related o the servioes performed for the Serles Trust, The
Trustes™s madmunn exposare under any such srangements i unknewn, of expasure andy arbies 1o the exntent futwe cliims
that have not yet oocurred are made against the Trustee, However, Based on raperience, the Truster expects the risk of
less to be redmate

SLBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management perfoimed o subseqieen] events review up 1o June 7, 2024, which s the daote the finandal statements were
avallable 1o be lsmed.

Effective March 1, 2004 through une 7, 2024, there were subscoriptions of USD 352 in respect of IPY Monthly Disribution
Cless and there were subsiriptions of USD 6,898 bn respect of 1PY Semi-Annual Distribution Class, there were subscriptions
of LAD 1,452 in respect of USD Monthly Distributien Class, there were subsoriptions of USD 19,558 In respect of USD Semi-
Annual Distribution Class,

Effective March 1, 2024 through une ¥, 3024, theve were redemptions af USD 365430 in respect of 1P Manthly
Disteibntian Class and thers were redernpiians of USD 1461231 n respent af JPY Semi-Arnunl Disribution Class, thene
were na redemptions In respect of US0 Monthly Distribution Class, there were redemptions of USD 15,3588 in respect of
S0 Semi-Annual Distribatisn Class,

Theere were distributions of USD 5578 n respect of JPY Monthly Distribution Cass, There were distributions of USD
209, 193 in reypesct of JPY Seeni-dnnwsl Distribution Class, Thers wene distribunions af USD 6 87T in respect of USD Monthly
Hsriburtion Class, There were distributions of USD 106,344 be respect of USD Semi-Annual Distribution Class

There are ne ather signifizant sveets t@ report as they relate 1o the Series Trst
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2025
54,377,658.32 7,874,428,701
205,232.39 29,719,702
54,172,425.93 7,844,708,999
94,525
1,566,528
23,597
740,136
8.38 1,214
9.31 1,348
6,664
7,359
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2025 31
2025 2024
5,294,366 766,677 4,561,628 660,569
1,646,749 238,466 1,834,018 265,584
6,941,115 1,005,143 6,395,646 926,153
1,497,979 216,922 1,655,120 239,678
1,497,979 216,922 1,655,120 239,678
480,000 69,509 480,000 69,509
4,963,136 718,712 4,260,526 616,967
5,443,136 788,221 4,740,526 686,476
6,941,115 1,005,143 6,395,646 926,153
11
10 22
2025 11
129332

144.81
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2025 31
2025 2024
12,773,881 1,849,786 12,998,608 1,882,328
(11,819,837)  (1,711,631) (12,015,683)  (1,739,991)
954,044 138,155 982,925 142,337
(17,231) (2.,495) (104,049) (15,067)
936,813 135,660 878,876 127,270
(234,203) (33,915) (219,719) (31,818)
702,610 101,745 659,157 95,453
702,610 101,745 659,157 95,453

11

144.81
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¢y > C )

480,000 69,509 10,351,369 1,498,982 10,831,369 1,568,491
659,157 95,453 659,157 95,453
(6,750,000)  (977,468) (6,750,000) (977,468)
480,000 69,509 4,260,526 616,967 4,740,526 686,476
702,610 101,745 702,610 101,745
480,000 69,509 4,963,136 718,712 5,443,136 788,221
11
144.81
2025 31
2025 2024

702,610 101,745 659,157 95,453

16,998 2,461 98,264 14,230

234,203 33,915 219,719 31,818

233 34 5,785 838

954,044 138,155 982,925 142,337

187,269 27,118 58,583 8,483

(171,626) (24,853) 9,320 1,350

(219,719) (31,818) (27,715) (4,013)

(233) (34) (1,179) (171)

749,735 108,569 1,021,934 147,986

(6,750, 000) (977,468)

(6.,750,000) (977,468)

749,735 108,569 (5.728,066) (829,481)

4,561,628 660,569 10,387,958 1,504,280

(16,998) (2,461) (98,264) (14,230)

5,294,365 766,677 4,561,628 660,569

11
144.81
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2025 31
309GT
IFRS
2025 31 5,294,366
12
12
2025 31 2024 31
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12
2025 31
2025 2024
12,666,479 12,773,098
107,402 225,510
12,773,881 12,998,608
2025 2024
45,772 44,961
45,772 44,961
2025 2024
16,998 98,264
233 5,785
17,231 104,049
31
2025 2024
(234,203) (219,719)
(234,203) (219,719)
(234,203) (219,719)

2024 31
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2025 2024
936,813 878,876
2024 25
(234,203) (219,719)
(234,203) (219,719)
25.0 25.0
2025 2024
1,560,608 1,710,268
52,370
86,141 71,380
1,646,749 1,834,018
2025 2024
221,928 214,067
202,510 230,168
839,338 991,166
234,203 219,719
1,497,979 1,655,120
2025
31

30
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432,578 2024 700,040 2025 31 10
43 2024 64 43 2024
78
10
2025 31 2025 31
2025 31 @ ® ©
( ) ( ) ( )
793,638 59,016
5,075,949 489,301
2,302,911 241,397
624,356 49,624
11,448
105,235

8,913,537 839,338
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2024 31 2024 31
2024 31 a
@ O ©
¢ ¢ C
1,086,979 84,395
4,907,366 409,093
2,308,193 439,668
705,026 56,062 52,370
26,078 1,948
107,407
9,141,049 991,166 52,370
(a
(b
(c
(
2025 31 79,835 2024 79,609
11

https://www._smtg.jp/en/
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MNIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A5 AT 31 MARCH 2025

Note 2025 2024
UsD usp

Assets
Current Assels
Cash and cash eguivalents 5,294,366 4,561,628
Debtors T 1,646,749 1,834,018
Total Current Assets 6,941,115 6,395,646
Liabilities and Equity
Current Liabilities
Creditors ] 1,497,379 1,655,120
Total Current Liabilities 1,497,973 1,655,120
Equity
Capital and Resenves Attributable to Equity Holders
of the Company
Share capital 480,000 480,000
Retained earnings 4,963,136 4,260.526
Taotal Equity 5,443,136 4,740,526
Total Liabilities and Equity 6,941,115 6,395,646

The annexed notes from 1 to 11 form an integral part of these financial stalements.

These financial staternents on pages 10 to 22 were approved by the Board of Directors and autherised
for issue and signed on its behalf by

A

D Cruise
Direchor

11 July 2025

Company registered number: 129332
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MIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

Mote 2025 2024

UsD Usn
Revenue 3 12,773,881 12,598,608
Adminkstrative expenses 111,819,837} (12,015,683}
Operating profit 554,044 982,925
Other expenses 5 {17,231) {204,043}
Profit before income tax 936,813 878,876
Income tax ] 1734,203) (219,719}
Profit after income tax 702,610 659,157
Other Comprehensive Income far the yvear - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 702,610 659,157

All the Company's operations are classified as continuing.

The annexed notes from 1 to 11 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025
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Share Retained
it R o Earnings Lot

5D uso UsD
Balance at 1 April 2023 480,000 10,351,369 10,831,368
Total comprehensive incom for
the year 650,157 B59,157
Dividend paid - (6,750,000} {6,750,000)
Balance at 31 March 2024 480,000 4,260,526 4,740,526
Tatal comprehensive income for
s 702,610 702,610
Balance at 31 March 2025 480,000 4,963,136 5,243,136

The annexed notes fram 1 to 11 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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MIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

MNate 2025 2024
UsD UsD
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Profit after tax 702,610 659,157
Adjustments for:
Met foreign exchange loss 5 16,998 98,264
Tax charge G 234,203 219,119
Interest expense 5 33 5,785
Operational cash flows before movements in
workdng capftal 954,044 582,925
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Decrease in receivables 187,269 58,583
{Decrease)/ increase in payables [171,626) 9,320
Net amounts paid to affilizte = group tax relief (219,713) (27,715}
Interast paid [233) {1,179}
et Cash Generated from Operating Activities 749,735 1,021,934
Finandng Activities
Dividend paid to equity holders {6, 750,000)
et Cash from Financing Activities {6,750,000)
Net increase/ [decrease) in Cash and Cash
Equivalents 749,735 {5,728,0656}
Cazh and cash equivalents, beginning of the year 4,561,628 10,387,958
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held {16,998) (98, 264)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of the Year 5,294,365 4,561,628

The annexed notes from 1 ta 11 ferm an integral part of these financial statements.
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NIKKC AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

fote 1 - General information

Nikko AM Global Cayman Limited (“the Company™) is incorporated and domiciled in the Cayman
Islands. The address of the registered office s PO Box 200GT, Ugland House, South Chirch Strest,
Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands. The principal activities of the Company during the year were the
provision of investment advice and investment management services to third parties and other group
members. These financial statements have been prepared to ensure continued compliance by the
Company with the requirements of Chapter 3 of the Overseas Companies Regulations.

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Principles
The princigal accounting polices adopted are set oul below.

Basis of preparation

The Cempanys financial statements have been prepared in accerdance with UK-adopted international
accounting standards {UK-adopted IFRS). The accounting policies set out below have been applied
consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements.

The directors have adopted the going concern basis of preparation in preparing these financial
statements for the I'u]l:uwing reasons: the Company is profitable; the Company has a strong and highly
ligquid balance sheet including cash reserves of 55,204,366 as at 31 March 2025 which is adequate to
caver the relatively low-cost base (after excluding sub-advisory fees which are covered by revenues),
The directors have prepared profit forecasts which, together with the liguid reserves and low-cost
base, indicate that the Company has sufficient reserves 1o meet their liabilities for at least 12 months
fram the date of preparing these financial statements.

Based an the above, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate
reLources Lo continue its operations for at beast 12 menths from the date of these financlal statements,
Therefore, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing these accounts.

Mew accounting standards
The directors do not consider that any new accounting standards had a material impact on the
Company nthe cUrFent year,

Folowing a review of the upcoming accounting standards, the directors have assessed the anticipated
impact on the financial statements and concluded this to be minimal,

Measurement convention
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

154/211



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

NIKKD AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Principles [continued)

Estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements requires the directors to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the amounts reportec for assets and liabilities as at the batance sheet date and the amounts
reported for revenves and expenses during the year. The nature of estimation means that actual
outcomes could differ from those estimates. The assumptions and estimates, which are continuoushy
reviewed, are based on past experience and other factors, including expectations regarding tikely
developments in the future. At 31 March 2025 and 2024 there weere na material estimates or
assumprions.

Revenues

Cperating revenues inchude investment management, investment advisory and performance fees.
Cperating revenues are measured at the fale value of the cansideration received of receivable for
services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts, trail fees, VAT and other sales
related taxes,

Investment management and atvisary fees and associated charges are recognised over time when
the services concernad are rendered. Investment management and sdvisory fees are calculated as a
percentage of assets under management. Performance fees are recognised at @ point in time when
they crystallise in the perbod inwhich they become due and collectable.

Administrative expenses
Admanistrative expenses are accounted for over the period the refated service is pravided.

Current and deferred income tax

Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferres tax, Tax is recognised in the
statement of cumprehenslue income except to the extent that it relates to ltems recognised directly
in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable mcome or loss for the year, using
tax rabes enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adiistment 1o tax
payable n respect of prevbous years.

The Company may utilise current tax credits arising on lasses in other Group entities against its tax
charges.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and labilities in the statement of inancial pasitian and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax is accounted for using the statement of
financial position liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
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KIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LIMITED
MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

Note 2 = Summary of Significant Accounting Principles {continued)

Fargign currencies
The funclional and presentational cuirendy of the Company is US dollars [5).

Transactions in currencies other than US dollars are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At each bafance sheet date manetary assets that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Mon-monetary
assets and Babdlities carried at fair value that are denominated In forelgn currencies are franslated at
the rates prevailing at the date when fair value was determined. Gains and losses arising on
retranstation are included in net prafit or loss for the period, except for exchange differences arising
on non-monetary assets and liapilities where the changes in fair value sre recognised directly inequity.

Financial instruments

The Company's financial instruments comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables,
and trade and other payables, These are classified and measured in accordance with IFRS 9 Einancial
Instruments,

{f) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand. Instruments are held to mest sharts
term cash commitments and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes invalue. Cash earns interest
at market rates dependent on the size of the balance, Finance incoma is acerued on cash and cash
equivalents on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the applicable interest
rate.

{ii} Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables include amounts due for management, advisary and performance fees
and amounts due from customers and others. Al trade and other receivables are repayable on
demand or within one year. They are recorded In the statement of financial position at amertised
cost, reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Amounts owed by
group undertakings are wnsecured, interast free and have no fixed tarms of repayment.

{iii} Trode and ather payables

Trade and other payables include amounts dee for investment management, advisory fees and
performance fees and amounts due to vendors and others, initially and subseguently recorded at
amortised cost. Al trade and ather payables are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangement entered Into, They are payvable on demand or within ane year and are
fecorded on the statement of financial position at cost, Amounts owed 1o group undertakings are
unsecured, interest free and have no ficed terms of repayment,

{le) Impairment of finoncial assets

The Company evaluates potential credit lasses on all financial assets that are measured at amortisad
cost, Factors considered in determining whether a default Is likely or possible include whether a
payment is overdue (and the length of that period), any known detericration in the eradit quality of a
client! counterparty of other issues that could adversely affect a client's/ counterparty’s credit quality.
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MIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Principles (continued)

[t} impairment of financial assets feentinued)
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For financial assets where there are no known issues affecting credit quality, expected credit losses
are calculated based on the lossas that are expected to be incurred over a rolling twelve-month period.
Given the nature of the Company’s financial assets (i.e. mostly cash at bank), the directers consider

there to be a very low credit risk,

For any financial assets where the contractual payment [s more than 30 days past due, the default
positien is to assume an incréase in credit risk. However, default levels In the past have been
immaterial and there were no fee receivables deemed past due as at 31 March 2025,

MNote 3 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers

All revenue relates to the pravision of investment advice and investment management services and

arises In the Cayman Islands.

Investment management and advisory fees
Performance fees
Total

Mote 4 = Auditor's Remuneration

Fees payable to Compary’'s Auditor for the audit
of the company financial statements
Total

Mote 5— Other Expenses

Het foreign exchange loss
Interast Expense
Total
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2025 2024
usn uso
12,666,479 12,773,088
107 402 235,510
12,773,881 12,998,608
2025 2024
uso usp
45,772 44,961
45,772 44,961
2025 2024
UsD usD
16,938 98,264
243 5,785
17,231 104,049




MNIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LIMITED
MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

MNote 6 — Taxation

Taxes on income for the year ended 31 March 2025 and 2024 were as follows:

Current Tax
UK corporation tax at 25% (2024: 25%)
Total Current Income Tax Expense

Tatal Income Tax Expense
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2025 2024

usD ush
(234,203) {219,713)
(234,203) [219,719)
(234,203) (219,719)

A reconciliation between the amount of Lax expense at the effective statutory rate and taxes on
income as reflected in continuing operations fior the years ended 31 March 2025 and 2024 is presented

below:

Tax Reconcillation
Frofit before taxes

Profit multiplied by the standard rate of corpocation tax in

the LE: 25% (2024: 25%)
Total Income Tax Expense

Effective tax rate for the year

515,813 878,876
{234,203} [219.719)
(234,203) (219,719}

2505 25.0%

The Company uses current tax credit from other entities in the Nikko Group to offset the Company’s

CHFTENE Tax eXpense.

The amount due to affiliates in relation to group tax relief is included as a payable in the statement of

financial position, note 8.

Note 7 - Debtors

ACcounts receivable

Amounts receivable fram affiliates
Accrued income and prepaid expense
Total
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1,560,608 1,710,268
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MNIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

Note 8 — Creditors

2025 2024

usp usD
Accrued expenses and deflerred income 231428 214,067
Accounts payable 02,510 230,168
Amounts payable to affiliates 839,338 991,166
Amounts payable to affiliates - group tax relief 234,203 213,719
Total 1,497,979 1,655,120

Note 9 = Financlal Risk Factors
The main risks associated with the Company's financlal assets and Nabilities are set out below:

Credit risk

Credit risk is defined as the risk of financial loss due 1w a counterparty’s faslure to honour its ebligation
principally in relation to transactions where the Company provides goods of services on deferred
terms and where it invests or deposits surplus cash. The directors do not believe that the Company is
materially exposed to credit risk as its sales debtors are managed group funds and therefore
management and performance fees receivable are governed by It agreements with these funds. To
mitigate any residual risk of these assets failing to be dellvered, the directors ensure that the terms of
these agreements in relation to payments of management and performance fees are adhered Lo by
manitoring the Company’s aged debtor analysis against the agreed senvice level agreements.

The Company adopts the policy of dealing with customers of appropriate credit histary, For other
financial assers, the Company adopts the policy of dealing with financial institutbons and other
counterparties with high credit ratings. There are no financial assets past due andf or impaired as at
31 March 2025 and 2024. Trade receivables are due at least quarterly, and are normally settled within
30 days of their due date. There are no overdue trade recelvables at the balance sheet date.

Further, with regard to bank deposits, the Company only deposits money with approved
counterparties on agreed tesms,
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NIKKD AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

Note 9= Financial Risk Factors (continued)

Market risk

Market risk [or systemic risk) is defined as that risk which Is common to an entire class of assets af
liabilities whereby their value can fluctuate simply because of economic changes or other events that
impact large portlons of the market. The directors do not believe that the Company is exposed to
material market risk as the assets the Company manages are held by and for the benefit of fund
holders through separate Iegal entities.

Currency risk

Currency risk is defined as the risk that the value of assets and liabllities denominated in currencies
other than the functional currency of the Comparny will change in value due to movements in foreign
excthange rates. The Company i exposed to currency risk arising from cash balances and fees
recaivable invarious currencies.

The Company's total exposure to currency risk arising from cash balances, payables and fees
receivable in other currencies is 5432578 [2024: $700,040). As at 31 March 2025, had these
currencics strengthened/ weakened by 10% against the USD, the total exposure would have been
lower by $43k {2024: $64k)/ increased by 543k {2024: 573k).

Liguidity risk and financial solvency risk

Liguidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations
as they fall due. The directors approach to managing this risk is to ensure that the Company has
sufficient liguidity vo meet its labilities when due, both under normal and stressed conditions.

Capital management

The Company's capital position s manitored on an ongoing basis to ensure that it is adeguate, There
are na externally imposed capital reguiremendts.
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Note 10 — Related Party Transactions

Transactions petween the Company and related parties are disclosed below:

Year ended 31 March 2025

Mikka AM Americas, Ing,
Mikko AM Europe Lid,
Mikko AM Co., Ltd.
Mikko AM Asia Lrd,
Mikka AM Hong Kang
Highwater Limited
Total

Year ended 31 March 2024

Mikko AM Americas, Inc.
Mikko AM Europe Ltd.
MNikko AM Co., Ltd.
fikke AM Asia Ltd,
Nikka AM Hong Kong
Highwater Limited
Total

NIKKED AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025
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Operating Creditor as at 31 Debtors as at 31
Expenses [a) March 2025 (b} March 2025 (c)
UsD usD UsD
793,638 59,016 -
5,075,545% 434,301 .
2,302,911 241,397
624,356 49,624
11,448 -
105,235 .
8,913,537 839,338
Operating Creditor as at 31 Debtaors as at 31
Expenses (a) March 2024 {b) March 2024 (c)
usp UsoD usp
1,086,979 84,395
4,907,366 a0a,063 =
2,308 193 A39,668 =
705,026 56,062 52,3710
26,078 1,948 .
107 407 . -
5,141,085 991,166 52,370

{a) Operating expenses paid to related parties (excluding Highwater Limited) are payable under
invesiment management agresments, or equivalent, and are for fund management services.
Operating expenses paid 10 Highwater Limited relate to director, company secretarial and other
services provided by Highwater Limited to the Company,

(k) The ameounts outstanding, in the above table relate to operating eupenses, are unsecured and will
be settled In cash. Mo guaraniees have been glven or received, Mo provisions have been made
for doubtful debts in respect of the amounts owed by related parties.

[c} The amounts owed are unsecured and will be settled in cash, Mo guarantees have been given or

recahved,

{d} Amounts payable 1o Nikko Asset Management Eurcpe Lid relating 1o group tax refiel are not
included In the amounts cutstanding in the above table but are included in the statement of

financial position, note 8,

The directors are the key management personnel of the Company. Remuneration of direetars far the
year ended 31 March 2025 was 579,835 (2024: 575,609}

Nikko Asset Management Co., Ltd is the intermediate parent company of the Company. Mikko Asset
Management Americas, Inc., Nikko Asset Management Europe Lid., Nikko Asset Management Asia Led
and Nikko Asset Management Hong Kong are fellow subsidiaries of the Company, Highwater Linited
is controlled by Individuals who are Directors of Nikko AM Global Cayman Limited.
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NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LIMITED
MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

Mote 11 = Ultimate Holding Company

The Campany's immediate parent Is Nikke AM Global Holdings Limited, a company located in the
United Kingdom. The Company is  subsidiary undertaking of Sumitomao Mitsui Trust Group, Inc which
is the uitimate parcnt company in Japan.

The: largest group in which the results of the Company are consolidated is that headed by Sumitomo
Mitsul Trust Group, Inc., 1-1-2 Marunouchi, Chivada-ku, Tokyo, Japan. The consolidated financial

stayerments of this gmup are available to the public https:/fwww smig ipfenl.
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@
CIBC
CIBC Caribbean Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
2025 37,187,496.96 53 8,512
CIBC 1965
@
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.
2024 12 1,060,000,000 1,534 9,860
(©))
UFJ
2025 405
-2
SMBC
2025 875
()
2025 173 63
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Report of independent auditors

To CIBC Caribbean Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
solely in its capacity as the Trustee of DoubleLine Total Return Fund

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of DoubleLine Total Return Fund (the "Series
Trust™), which comprise the statement of assets and liabilities, including the portfolio of
investments, as of February 28, 2025, and the related statements of operations, of changes in net
assets, and of cash flows and the financial highlights for the year then ended, including the related
notes (collectively referred to as the ““financial statements””).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Series Trust as of February 28, 2025, and the results of its operations,
changes in its net assets, and its cash flows and the financial highlights for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (US GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors
= responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are required
to be independent of the Series Trust and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance
with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we

have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Series Trust”s ability
to continue as a going concern for one year after the date the financial statements are available to

be issued.
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Auditors® responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors” report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in
the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Series Trust”s internal control. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Series Trust®s ability to continue as a going concern
for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-
related matters that we identified during the audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
July 9, 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR®S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the non-statutory financial statements of Nikko AM Global Cayman Limited (““the Company””) for
the year ended 31 March 2025 which comprise the statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Financial
Position, Statement of Changes in Equity, Cash Flow Statement and related notes, including the accounting
policies in note 2. The non-statutory financial statements have been prepared for the reasons set out in note 1.

In our opinion the non-statutory financial statements:

give a true and fair view of the state of the Company ”s affairs as at 31 March 2025 and of its profit for
the year then ended; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting standards.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (““ISAs (UK)*?) and the terms
of our engagement letter dated 18 March 2025. Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our
ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the Company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements
including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and
appropriate basis for our opinion.

Going concern

The directors have prepared the non-statutory financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not
intend to liquidate the Company or to cease its operations, and as they have concluded that the Company®s
financial position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material
uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over its ability to continue as a going concern for at least
a year from the date of approval of the non-statutory financial statements (““the going concern period’”).

In our evaluation of the directors® conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the Company s business
model and analysed how those risks might affect the Company s financial resources or ability to continue
operations over the going concern period.

Our conclusions based on this work:

we consider that the directors® use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the non-
statutory financial statements is appropriate; and

we have not identified and concur with the directors” assessment that there is not, a material uncertainty
related to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the
Company*s ability to continue as a going concern for the going concern period.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes

that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the above conclusions are
not a guarantee that the Company will continue in operation.
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Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations — ability to detect

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to fraud

To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud (““fraud risks””) we assessed events or conditions that
could indicate an incentive or pressure to commit fraud or provide an opportunity to commit fraud. Our risk
assessment procedures included:

enquiring of directors and inspection of policy documentation as to the Company ”s high-level policies and
procedures to prevent and detect fraud, as well as whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or
alleged fraud; and

reading Board meeting minutes.

We communicated identified fraud risks throughout the audit team and remained alert to any indications of fraud
throughout the audit.

As required by auditing standards, and taking into account our overall knowledge of the control environment, we
perform procedures to address the risk of management override of controls, in particular the risk that management
may be in a position to make inappropriate accounting entries. On this audit we do not believe there is a fraud
risk related to revenue recognition because the calculation of the revenue is non-judgmental and straightforward,
with limited opportunity for manipulation.

We did not identify any additional fraud risks.

We also performed procedures including identifying journal entries to test based on risk criteria and comparing
the identified entries to supporting documentation. These included all post-closing journals.

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement related to non-compliance with laws and regulations

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the
financial statements from our general commercial and sector experience, and through discussion with the directors
and other management (as required by auditing standards), and from inspection of the Company"s regulatory and
legal correspondence and discussed with the directors and other management the policies and procedures regarding
compliance with laws and regulations.

We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to any indications of non-
compliance throughout the audit.

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the financial statements varies considerably.

Firstly, the Company is subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the financial statements including
financial reporting legislation (including related companies legislation), and we assessed the extent of
compliance with these laws and regulations as part of our procedures on the related financial statement items.

Secondly, the Company is subject to many other laws and regulations where the consequences of non-compliance
could have a material effect on amounts or disclosures in the financial statements, for instance through the
imposition of fines or litigation or the loss of the Company®s authority to operate. We identified the following
areas as those most likely to have such an effect: certain aspects of company legislation recognising the
financial nature of the Company"s activities and its legal form.

Auditing standards limit the required audit procedures to identify non-compliance with these laws and regulations
to enquiry of the directors and other management and inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence, if any.
Therefore, if a breach of operational regulations is not disclosed to us or evident from relevant correspondence,
an audit will not detect that breach.
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Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or breaches of law or regulation

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some
material misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have properly planned and performed our audit
in accordance with auditing standards. For example, the further removed noncompliance with laws and regulations
is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely the inherently limited
procedures required by auditing standards would identify it.

In addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk of non-detection of fraud, as these may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls. Our audit
procedures are designed to detect material misstatement. We are not responsible for preventing noncompliance or
fraud and cannot be expected to detect non-compliance with all laws and regulations.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information, which comprises the Directors Report. Our opinion on the
non-statutory financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an
audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our non-
statutory financial statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with
the non-statutory financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work, we have not identified
material misstatements in the other information.

Directors”™ responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 5, the directors are responsible for: the preparation
of the non-statutory financial statements, which are intended by them to give a true and fair view; such internal
control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of non-statutory financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the Company s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor®s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the non-statutory financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor s
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the non-statutory financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC~s website at
www._frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.
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The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

Our report has been prepared for the Company solely in accordance with the terms of our engagement. It has been
released to the Company on the basis that our report shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole
(save for the Company *s own internal purposes) or in part, without our prior written consent.

Our report was designed to meet the agreed requirements of the Company determined by the Company ”s needs at the
time. Our report should not therefore be regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any party wishing to
acquire rights against us other than the Company for any purpose or in any context. Any party other than the
Company who obtains access to our report or a copy and chooses to rely on our report (or any part of it) will do
so at its own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, KPMG LLP will accept no responsibility or liability
in respect of our report to any other party.

Carla Cassidy (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP

Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

London E14 5GL

11 July 2025
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Report of independent auditors

To FirstCaribbean International Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
solely in its capacity as the Trustee of DoubleLine Total Return Fund

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of DoubleLine Total Return Fund (the "Series
Trust™), which comprise the statement of assets and liabilities, including the portfolio of
investments, as of February 29, 2024, and the related statements of operations, of changes in net
assets, and of cash flows and the financial highlights for the year then ended, including the related
notes (collectively referred to as the ““financial statements””).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Series Trust as of February 29, 2024, and the results of its operations,
changes in its net assets, and its cash flows and the financial highlights for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (US GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors
= responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are required
to be independent of the Series Trust and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance
with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we

have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Series Trust”s ability
to continue as a going concern for one year after the date the financial statements are available to

be issued.
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Auditors® responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors” report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in
the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Series Trust”s internal control. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Series Trust®s ability to continue as a going concern
for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-
related matters that we identified during the audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
June 7, 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR®S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the non-statutory financial statements of Nikko AM Global Cayman Limited (““the Company””) for
the year ended 31 March 2024 which comprise the statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Financial
Position, Statement of Changes in Equity, Cash Flow Statement and related notes, including the accounting
policies in note 2. The non-statutory financial statements have been prepared for the reasons set out in note 1.

In our opinion the non-statutory financial statements:

give a true and fair view of the state of the Company s affairs as at 31 March 2024 and of its profit for
the year then ended; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting standards.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (““ISAs (UK)*?) and the terms
of our engagement letter dated 12 April 2024.  Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our
ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the Company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements
including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and
appropriate basis for our opinion.

Going concern

The directors have prepared the non-statutory financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not
intend to liquidate the Company or to cease its operations, and as they have concluded that the Company®s
financial position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material
uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over its ability to continue as a going concern for at least
a year from the date of approval of the non-statutory financial statements (““the going concern period’”).

In our evaluation of the directors® conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the Company s business
model and analysed how those risks might affect the Company s financial resources or ability to continue
operations over the going concern period.

Our conclusions based on this work:

we consider that the directors® use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the non-
statutory financial statements is appropriate; and

we have not identified and concur with the directors” assessment that there is not, a material uncertainty
related to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the
Company*s ability to continue as a going concern for the going concern period.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes

that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the above conclusions are
not a guarantee that the Company will continue in operation.
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Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations — ability to detect

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to fraud

To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud (““fraud risks””) we assessed events or conditions that
could indicate an incentive or pressure to commit fraud or provide an opportunity to commit fraud. Our risk
assessment procedures included:

enquiring of directors and inspection of policy documentation as to the Company ”s high-level policies and
procedures to prevent and detect fraud, as well as whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or
alleged fraud; and

reading Board meeting minutes.

We communicated identified fraud risks throughout the audit team and remained alert to any indications of fraud
throughout the audit.

As required by auditing standards, and taking into account our overall knowledge of the control environment, we
perform procedures to address the risk of management override of controls, in particular the risk that management
may be in a position to make inappropriate accounting entries. On this audit we do not believe there is a fraud
risk related to revenue recognition because the calculation of the revenue is non-judgmental and straightforward,
with limited opportunity for manipulation.

We did not identify any additional fraud risks.

We also performed procedures including identifying journal entries to test based on risk criteria and comparing
the identified entries to supporting documentation. These included all post-closing journals.

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to non-compliance with laws and Regulations

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the
financial statements from our general commercial and sector experience, and through discussion with the directors
and other management (as required by auditing standards), and from inspection of the Company"s regulatory and
legal correspondence and discussed with the directors and other management the policies and procedures regarding
compliance with laws and regulations.

We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to any indications of non-
compliance throughout the audit.

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the financial statements varies considerably.

Firstly, the Company is subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the financial statements including
financial reporting legislation (including related companies legislation), and we assessed the extent of
compliance with these laws and regulations as part of our procedures on the related financial statement items.

Secondly, the Company is subject to many other laws and regulations where the consequences of non-compliance
could have a material effect on amounts or disclosures in the financial statements, for instance through the
imposition of fines or litigation or the loss of the Company®s authority to operate. We identified the following
areas as those most likely to have such an effect: certain aspects of company legislation recognising the
financial nature of the Company"s activities and its legal form.

Auditing standards limit the required audit procedures to identify non-compliance with these laws and regulations
to enquiry of the directors and other management and inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence, if any.
Therefore, if a breach of operational regulations is not disclosed to us or evident from relevant correspondence,
an audit will not detect that breach.
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Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or breaches of law or regulation

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some
material misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have properly planned and performed our audit
in accordance with auditing standards. For example, the further removed noncompliance with laws and regulations
is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely the inherently limited
procedures required by auditing standards would identify it.

In addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk of non-detection of fraud, as these may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls. Our audit
procedures are designed to detect material misstatement. We are not responsible for preventing noncompliance or
fraud and cannot be expected to detect non-compliance with all laws and regulations.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information, which comprises the Directors Report. Our opinion on the
non-statutory financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an
audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our non-
statutory financial statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with
the non-statutory financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work, we have not identified
material misstatements in the other information.

Directors”™ responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 5, the directors are responsible for: the preparation
of the non-statutory financial statements, which are intended by them to give a true and fair view; such internal
control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of non-statutory financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the Company s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor®s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the non-statutory financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor s
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the non-statutory financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC~s website at
www._frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.
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The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

Our report has been prepared for the Company solely in accordance with the terms of our engagement. It has been
released to the Company on the basis that our report shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole
(save for the Company *s own internal purposes) or in part, without our prior written consent.

Our report was designed to meet the agreed requirements of the Company determined by the Company ”s needs at the
time. Our report should not therefore be regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any party wishing to
acquire rights against us other than the Company for any purpose or in any context. Any party other than the
Company who obtains access to our report or a copy and chooses to rely on our report (or any part of it) will do
so at its own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, KPMG LLP will accept no responsibility or liability
in respect of our report to any other party.

KPMG LLP

Chartered Accountants
15 Canada Square
London E14 5GL

16 July 2024
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